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Explanatory Note
On July 3, 2019, Morningstar, Inc. ("Morningstar") filed a Current Report on Form 8-K (the "Original Form 8-K") to announce that it had completed the
acquisition of Ratings Acquisition Corp, an exempted company incorporated under the Laws of the Cayman Islands ("DBRS") for a purchase price of
US$669 million (subject to adjustment) pursuant to the terms of the Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of May 28, 2019, by and among DBRS,
Alpine Merger Co., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Morningstar, and Shareholder Representative Services LLC, as representative of the shareholders of
DBRS. Morningstar is filing this Form 8-K/A as an amendment to the Original Form 8-K to provide audited and unaudited financial statements of DBRS
and pro forma financial information required by Items 9.01(a) and (b) of Form 8-K, respectively.

Item 9.01 Financial Statements and Exhibits.
(a)

Financial Statements of Business Acquired

The audited consolidated financial statements of DBRS as of and for the fiscal years ended November 30, 2018 and 2017, the related notes and the
related independent auditors reports of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP thereon, as required by Item 9.01(a) of Form 8-K, are included as Exhibit 99.1 to
this Current Report on Form 8-K/A and are incorporated herein by reference. The unaudited consolidated financial statements of DBRS as of and for the
fiscal quarters ended February 28, 2019 and 2018 and the related notes, as required by Item 9.01(a) of Form 8-K, are included as Exhibit 99.2 to this
Current Report on Form 8-K/A and are incorporated herein by reference.
(b)

Pro Forma Financial Information

The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information, consisting of the statements of income for the six months ended June 30, 2019 and
the year ended December 31, 2018, the balance sheet as of June 30, 2019, and related notes, as required by Item 9.01(b) of Form 8-K, are included as
Exhibit 99.3 to this Current Report on Form 8-K/A and are incorporated herein by reference.
(c)

Not applicable

(d)

Exhibits
23.1

Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Independent Auditors of DBRS

99.1

Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of DBRS as of and for the fiscal years ended November 30, 2018 and 2017, the related
notes and the related independent auditors reports of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP thereon

99.2

Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements of DBRS as of and for the fiscal quarters ended February 28, 2019 and 2018 and the
related notes

99.3

Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Information

104

Cover Page Interactive Data File (the cover page XBRL tags are embedded in the Inline XBRL document).

SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned hereunto duly authorized.
MORNINGSTAR, INC.
Date: September 17, 2019

By:

/s/ Jason Dubinsky
Jason Dubinsky
Chief Financial Officer

Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statement on Form S-8 (No. 333-176203) of Morningstar, Inc. of our report dated April 15,
2019 relating to the consolidated balance sheet as of November 30, 2018 and the related consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss), share
capital and other shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the year then ended, of Ratings Acquisition Corp, which appears in this Current Report on Form 8-K.
We further consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statement on Form S-8 (No. 333-176203) of Morningstar, Inc. of our report dated April 13,
2018 relating to the consolidated balance sheet as of November 30, 2017 and the related consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss), share
capital and other shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the year then ended, of Ratings Acquisition Corp, which appears in this Current Report on Form 8-K.
We also consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statement on Form S-8 (No. 333-176203) of Morningstar, Inc. of our report dated August 17, 2017
relating to the consolidated balance sheet as of November 30, 2016 and the related consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss, share capital and other
shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the year then ended, of Ratings Acquisition Corp, which appears in this Current Report on Form 8-K.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Oakville, Ontario, Canada
September 17, 2019

Exhibit 99.1
Ratings Acquisition Corp
(operating as DBRS Group)
Consolidated Financial Statements
November 30, 2018
(expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars, unless otherwise
indicated)

April 15, 2019
Report of Independent Auditors
To the Board of Directors of
Ratings Acquisition Corp
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Ratings Acquisition Corp, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as of November 30,
2018, the related consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss), share capital and other shareholders' equity and cash flows for the year then
ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.
Management's responsibility for the consolidated financial statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditors' responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the Company's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of Ratings Acquisition
Corp as of November 30, 2018, and the results of its consolidated operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.
“/s/PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP”
Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants
Oakville, Canada

Ratings Acquisition Corp
(operating as DBRS Group)
Consolidated Balance Sheet
(expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars, unless otherwise indicated)
As at November 30, 2018
Notes
Assets
Current
Cash
Accounts receivable, net
Prepaid expenses
Deferred tax assets
Income tax receivable
Current portion of assets of discontinued operations

Investments
Property and equipment, net
Other assets
Intangible assets
Goodwill
Swap receivable
Assets of discontinued operations

November 30, 2018

$
3
7
18

4
5
5
13
18
$

Liabilities
Current
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Employee incentive plans
Current portion deferred revenue
Current portion of long-term debt
Other
Current portion of liabilities of discontinued operations

Deferred revenue
Long-term debt
Deferred tax liabilities
Unrecognized tax benefits
Asset retirement obligation
Other

$

56,842
35,782
4,521
1,870
1,662
35
100,712
683
14,688
217
297,862
302,038
7,082
723,282

November 30, 2017

$

$

40,100
32,296
5,392
455
229
78,472
704
8,996
255
324,460
298,322
2,962
51
714,222

7,658
26,496
37,607
5,234
954
87
78,036

12,185
28,064
31,388
2,902
1,584
318
76,441

22,778
283,801
69,214
4,027
313
3,182
461,351

18,363
277,421
84,732
2,672
303
1,471
461,403

10

80,820

85,779

10
11

197,972
(2,537)
(2,373)
1,122
(17,754)
4,681
181,111

197,972
(1,966)
(1,320)
1,122
(31,001)
2,233
167,040

8
6
9
18

6
7
7
9

Commitments (Note 15), Contingencies (Note 17), and Subsequent Events (Note 19)

Mezzanine equity
Class A preferred shares
Shareholders' Equity
Share capital
Treasury shares
Dividends paid
Contributed surplus
Deficit
Accumulated other comprehensive income

14

$

723,282

$

714,222

Approved on Behalf of the Board

Stephen Joynt, Director
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Ratings Acquisition Corp
(operating as DBRS Group)
Consolidated Statement of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss)
(expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars, unless otherwise indicated)
For the period ended November 30, 2018

Period ended
November 30, 2018

Notes
Revenue
Fees

Expenses
Salaries and benefits
Employee incentive plans
General and administrative
Rent and operating
Amortization and depreciation
Provision for allowance for doubtful accounts

$

218,678
218,678

$

208,499
208,499

$

88,185
25,071
33,808
8,620
32,916
6
188,606
30,072

$

85,124
26,410
29,239
7,815
32,743
27
181,358
27,141

4,5

Operating income from continuing operations

$

Other expenses (income)
Interest
Foreign exchange gain (loss)
Transaction and other
Gain on sale of investment
Income from continuing operations before income taxes
Income taxes
Current
Deferred
Net income from continuing operations
Net loss from discontinued operations
Net income

$

$
$

24,073
2,551
(102)
(921)
25,601 $
4,471 $

22,522
(2,845)
(33)
19,644
7,497

$

7,039
(17,275)
14,707
(1,460)
13,247 $

7,372
(5,652)
5,777
(1,289)
4,488

7
7
18

Other comprehensive income
Currency translation adjustment
$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Period ended
November 30, 2017

2,448
15,695

$

(4,302)
186

Ratings Acquisition Corp
(operating as DBRS Group)
Consolidated Statements of Share Capital and other Shareholders’ Equity
(expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars, unless otherwise indicated)
For the period ended November 30, 2018
Share
capital
Balance, December 1, 2016
Treasury shares repurchased
Net income
Dividends paid
Currency translation
adjustment
Balance, November 30, 2017

$ 197,972

$

$ 197,972

Share
capital
Balance, December 1, 2017
Treasury shares repurchased
Net income
Dividends paid
Currency translation
adjustment
Balance, November 30, 2018

Treasury
Stock

$ 197,972
$ 197,972

$

$

Contributed
Surplus

- $
(1,966)
-

(584) $

(1,966) $

(1,320) $

Treasury
Stock
$

Dividends
paid

(736)

Dividends
paid

Retained
earnings

Accumulated other
comprehensive income

1,122
-

$ (35,489) $
4,488
-

1,122

$ (31,001) $

Contributed
Surplus

Retained
earnings

6,535
-

$

169,556
(1,966)
4,488
(736)

(4,302)
2,233 $

(4,302)
167,040

Accumulated other
comprehensive income

(1,966) $
(571)
-

(1,320) $
(1,053)

1,122
-

$ (31,001) $
13,247
-

2,233
-

(2,537) $

(2,373) $

1,122

$ (17,754) $

2,448
4,681

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Total shareholders'
equity

Total shareholders'
equity
$

$

167,040
(571)
13,247
(1,053)
2,448
181,111

Ratings Acquisition Corp
(operating as DBRS Group)
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
(expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars, unless otherwise indicated)
For the period ended November 30, 2018
Notes

Period ended
November 30, 2018

Period ended
November 30, 2017

Cash Provided By (Used In)
Operating Activities
Net income from continuing operations

$

Items Not Affecting Cash:
Amortization and depreciation
Amortization of deferred lease inducements
Amortization of deferred financing fees
Swap receivable
Unrealized foreign exchange on balances
Asset retirement obligation
Deferred income taxes
Net Changes in Non-Cash Working Capital Related to Operations
Accounts receivable
Income taxes
Prepaid expenses
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Lease abandonment payable
Employee incentive plans
Deferred revenue
Net gain on sale of investment
Net cash flows from operating activities for continuing operations
Net cash flows from operating activities for discontinued operations
Net cash flows from operating activities
Investing Activities
Purchase of fixed assets
Purchase of intangible assets
Net proceeds on sale of investment
Net cash flows from investing activities for continuing operations
Net cash flows from investing activities for discontinued operations
Net cash flows from investing activities

18

18

Financing Activities
Treasury Shares
Redemption of preferred shares
Dividends paid
Loans paid to third parties
Net cash flows from financing activities for continuing operations
Net cash flows from financing activities
Net change in cash
Effects of exchange rates changes on cash
Cash, beginning of period
Cash, end of period

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

$

14,707

$

5,777

32,916
1,063
3,117
(4,119)
7,015
49
(17,275)

32,743
400
3,853
5,037
(9,297)
17
(5,652)

(3,327)
(1,619)
871
(5,836)
(529)
9,903
(614)
36,322
(1,406)
34,916

(2,672)
906
(1,004)
(527)
(464)
9,542
5,267
43,926
(1,303)
42,623

(7,682)
(1,598)
614
(8,666)
30
(8,636)

(3,403)
(2,572)
(5,975)
(25)
(6,000)

(571)
(4,959)
(1,053)
(2,991)
(9,574)
(9,574)

(571)
(5,260)
(736)
(2,921)
(9,488)
(9,488)

16,706
36
40,100

27,135
(1,275)
14,240

56,842

$

40,100

Ratings Acquisition Corp
(operating as DBRS Group)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars, unless otherwise indicated)
For the period ended November 30, 2018
1

Description of business and organization
a)

Description of business

Ratings Acquisition Corp (Ratings) is a private company incorporated on December 17, 2014 in the Cayman Islands. The subsidiaries consist of
DBRS, Inc. (DBRS US), DBRS Limited (DBRS Canada), DBRS Ratings Limited (DBRS UK), DBRS Ratings GmbH (DBRS Germany) and DBRS
Ratings Mexico, Institucion Calificadora de Valores, S.A. de C.V. (DBRS Mexico). DBRS Mexico was discontinued subsequent to year-end.
References herein to the Company refer to Ratings and its wholly owned subsidiaries.
Each wholly owned subsidiary is a recognized international full-service rating agency that provides timely and comprehensive rating opinions to the
world’s markets. Privately owned and independent, the subsidiaries offer in-depth credit ratings on issuers of commercial paper, bonds, long/shortterm debt, and preferred shares, as well as asset-backed securities in the corporate, financial institution, public finance, and structured finance
industries. The subsidiaries also offer industry analysis, rating reports, and ratings indices for issuers and investors in North America, Europe, Asia,
and Latin America.
All references to $ or dollars are to the currency of Canada unless otherwise indicated. All references to US dollars or US$ are to the currency of the
United States unless otherwise indicated. All references to British pounds or £ are to the currency of the United Kingdom unless otherwise indicated.
2

Summary of significant accounting policies
Basis of presentation and principles of consolidation
The Company prepares its consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America (US GAAP).
The consolidated financial statements include the results and balances of the Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries (DBRS Canada, DBRS
US, DBRS UK, DBRS Germany and DBRS Mexico, AAA UK Acquisition Co Limited., and AAA UK Holding Co Limited.). Intercompany balances and
transactions among consolidated entities have been eliminated on consolidation.
The Company’s reporting currency is the Canadian dollar.

Ratings Acquisition Corp
(operating as DBRS Group)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars, unless otherwise indicated)
For the period ended November 30, 2018
2

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Foreign currency translation
The functional currency of the Ratings Acquisition Corp is the US dollar, as the majority of its cash flows are in US dollars. The functional currency of
each of the Company’s subsidiaries is typically the primary currency in which each subsidiary operates, which is primarily the Canadian dollar, US
dollar, pound sterling or Mexican peso. Foreign currency balance sheets are translated using the period-end exchange rates, and the consolidated
statement of operations and comprehensive income (loss) and consolidated statement of cash flows are translated at the average exchange rates
for each period. The translation adjustments resulting from the translation of foreign currency financial statements are recorded in accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss) in the consolidated statement of financial position.
Use of estimates
The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with US GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the consolidated financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
Significant items subject to such estimates and assumptions include: revenue recognition, valuations used when assessing potential impairment of
long-lived assets and goodwill, the estimation of the useful life of property and equipment, the liability for employee incentive plans, deferred tax
assets, derivative financial instruments, fair value of assets and liabilities acquired in a business acquisition, and valuation of share-based
compensation. Estimates and assumptions used are based on factors such as historical experience, the observance of trends in the industries in
which the Company operates and information available from the Company’s customers and outside sources. While management applies its
judgment based on assumptions believed to be reasonable under the circumstances and at the time, actual results could vary from these
assumptions, and estimates may vary depending on the assumptions used. The Company evaluates and updates its assumptions and estimates
based on new events occurring, additional information being obtained or more experience being acquired.
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash includes balances with banks.
Accounts receivable allowance
The Company records an allowance for estimated future credit notes as a reduction of revenue based on management’s best estimate. The
estimated amount of uncollectible receivables is recorded as an allowance for bad debts. Credit notes issued for uncollectible amounts are charged
against the allowance. The Company evaluates its accounts receivable allowance by reviewing and assessing historical collection and adjustment
experience and the current status of customer accounts. The Company also considers the economic environment of the customers, both from an
industry and geographic perspective, in evaluating the need for allowances. Based on its analysis, the Company adjusts its allowance as considered
appropriate in the circumstances.

Ratings Acquisition Corp
(operating as DBRS Group)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars, unless otherwise indicated)
For the period ended November 30, 2018
2

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Comprehensive income
Comprehensive income represents the change in net assets of a business enterprise during a period due to transactions and other events and
circumstances from non-owner sources including foreign currency translation impacts.
Property and equipment - net
Property and equipment are stated cost less accumulated amortization and are amortized using the straight-line method over their estimated useful
lives. Major improvements are capitalized while expenditures for maintenance and repairs that do not extend the economic useful life of the related
assets are expensed when incurred. The amortization rates for property and equipment are as follows:
Computer equipment
Telephone system
Office equipment
Leasehold improvements

3 years
3 years
5 years
shorter or useful life or lease term

Goodwill
Goodwill is an asset representing the future economic benefits arising from other assets acquired in a business combination that are not individually
identified and separately recognized.
Goodwill is tested for impairment on an annual basis and more often if an event occurs or circumstances change that indicates impairment might
exist. The Company tests its goodwill at the appropriate reporting unit level. The Company’s impairment review for goodwill consists of a qualitative
assessment of whether it is more likely than not that a reporting unit’s fair value is less than its carrying amount, and if required, followed by a twostep process of determining the fair value of the reporting unit and comparing it to the carrying value of the net assets allocated to the reporting unit.
If the two-step goodwill impairment test is required, first, the fair value of the reporting unit is compared with its carrying amount (including goodwill).
If the fair value of the reporting unit is less than its carrying amount, an indication of goodwill impairment exists for the reporting unit and the entity
must perform step two of the impairment test (measurement). Under step two, an impairment loss is recognized for any excess of the carrying
amount of the reporting unit’s goodwill over the implied fair value of that goodwill. The implied fair value of goodwill is determined by allocating the
fair value of the reporting unit in a manner similar to a purchase price allocation and the residual fair value after this allocation is the implied fair
value of the reporting unit’s goodwill. Fair value of the reporting unit is determined using a discounted cash flow analysis. If the fair value of the
reporting unit exceeds its carrying amount, step two does not need to be performed.
The Company will perform its annual impairment review of indefinite-lived intangible assets as at March 1 of every fiscal year or when a triggering
event occurs between annual impairment dates. An impairment analysis was performed as of March 1, 2018 and no impairment or triggering events
were noted. As at November 30, 2018 no impairment or triggering events were noted.

Ratings Acquisition Corp
(operating as DBRS Group)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars, unless otherwise indicated)
For the period ended November 30, 2018
2

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Other intangible assets, excluding goodwill
Intangible assets, excluding goodwill, consist of definite-lived and indefinite-lived intangible assets. On recognition of an intangible asset, the
Company makes a determination as to whether it is indefinite or definite- lived, taking into consideration the expected use of the asset, expiry of
agreements, nature of the asset and whether the asset value decreases over time. The Company’s indefinite-lived intangible assets consist of the
DBRS trade name in Canada, the United States and Europe (trademark) and definite-lived intangibles assets consist of customer relationships,
technology and computer software obtained for internal use.
Indefinite-lived intangible assets are not amortized, are reported at cost less accumulated impairment losses and are tested for impairment at least
annually.
The Company will perform its annual impairment review of indefinite-lived intangible assets as at March 1 of every fiscal year or when a triggering
event occurs between annual impairment dates. An impairment analysis was performed as of March 1, 2018 and no impairment or triggering events
were noted. As at November 30, 2018 no impairment or triggering events were noted.
Definite-lived intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and any recognized impairment. Definite-lived intangible assets are
amortized on a straight-line basis over their following useful lives:
Customer relationships
Technology
Computer software obtained for internal use

4 - 13 years
6 years
3 - 5 years

Computer software developed or obtained for internal use
The Company capitalizes costs related to software developed or obtained for internal use. These assets, included in intangibles and goodwill in the
balance sheets, relate to the Company’s systems. Such costs generally consist of direct costs of employee compensation, in each case incurred
either during the application development stage or in connection with upgrades and enhancements that increase functionality. Such costs are
amortized over their estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. Costs incurred during the preliminary project stage of development as well as
maintenance costs are expensed as incurred. Capitalization of costs begin when the preliminary project stage is completed and management
authorizes and commits to funding a computer software project and it is probable that the project will be completed and the software will be used to
perform the function intended.

Ratings Acquisition Corp
(operating as DBRS Group)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars, unless otherwise indicated)
For the period ended November 30, 2018
2

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Impairment of long-lived assets
Long-lived assets, such as property and equipment, investments held at cost and definite-lived intangible assets, are tested for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable (triggering event). If it is determined
a triggering event has occurred, an undiscounted cash flow analysis is completed on the affected asset group to determine whether the future
expected undiscounted cash flows of an asset group are sufficient to recover the carrying value of the assets. If it is determined that the
undiscounted cash flows are insufficient, then the asset group is deemed to be impaired. The fair value of the long-lived assets is estimated primarily
using third party appraisals or discounted cash flows, as appropriate. If the fair value of the asset group is less than the carrying amount, an
impairment loss is recognized for the difference between the carrying amount and the fair value of the asset group.
Income taxes
The Company uses the asset and liability method whereby income taxes reflect the expected future tax consequences of temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for accounting purposes as compared to tax purposes. A deferred income tax asset or liability
is determined for each temporary difference based on the currently enacted tax rates that are expected to be in effect when the underlying items of
income and expense are expected to be realized, except for a portion of earnings related to foreign operations where repatriation is not
contemplated in the foreseeable future. Income taxes reported in the consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive income (loss) include
the current and deferred portions of the expense. Income taxes applicable to items charged or credited to equity are netted with such items.
Changes in deferred income taxes related to a change in tax rates are recognized in the period when the tax rate change is enacted. In addition, the
consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive loss contains items that are non-taxable or non-deductible for income tax purposes and,
accordingly, may cause the income tax provision to be different from what it would be if based on statutory rates. When considered necessary, the
Company records a valuation allowance to reduce deferred tax assets to the balance that is more likely than not to be realized. To determine the
valuation allowance, the Company must make estimates and judgments on future taxable income, considering feasible tax planning strategies and
taking into account existing facts and circumstances. When the Company determines that the net amount of deferred tax assets could be realized in
greater or lesser amounts than recognized, the asset balance and income tax expense reflect the change in the period such determination is made.
Due to changes in facts and circumstances and the estimates and judgments that are involved in determining the valuation allowance, future events
could result in adjustments to this valuation allowance.
A tax benefit from an uncertain tax position may be recognized in the consolidated financial statements only if it is more likely than not that the
position will be sustained on examination by taxing authorities, based on the technical merits of the position. The tax benefits recognized in the
consolidated financial statements from such a position are measured based on the largest benefit that has a greater than 50% likelihood of being
realized on ultimate settlement. Changes in judgment that result in subsequent recognition, de-recognition or a change in measurement of a tax
position taken in a prior period (including any related interest and penalties) are recognized as a discrete item in the period in which the change
occurs. The Company classifies interest related to unrecognized tax benefits in interest expense in its consolidated statement of operations and
comprehensive loss. Penalties, if incurred, would be recognized in in income taxes in the consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive
loss. The Company classifies a liability associated

Ratings Acquisition Corp
(operating as DBRS Group)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars, unless otherwise indicated)
For the period ended November 30, 2018
2

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Income taxes (continued)
with an unrecognized tax benefit as a long-term liability, except for liabilities that are expected to be settled within the next 12 months.
The determination of income tax expense takes into consideration amounts that may be needed to cover exposure for open tax years. The number
of tax years that remain open and subject to tax audits varies depending on the tax jurisdiction. A number of years may elapse before an uncertain
tax position, for which the Company has unrecognized tax benefits, is audited and resolved. While it is often difficult to predict the final outcome or
the timing or resolution of any particular uncertain tax position, the Company believes that its unrecognized tax benefits reflect management’s
current estimate of the expected outcomes. Unrecognized tax benefits are adjusted, as well as the related interest and penalties, in light of
subsequent changes in facts and circumstances. Settlement of any particular uncertain tax position may require the use of cash. In addition, the
resolution of a matter may result in an adjustment to the provision for income taxes, which may impact the effective tax rate in the period of
resolution.
Deferred lease inducement and rent expense
The Company records rent expense on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease. In cases where there is a free rent period or future fixed rent
escalations the Company will record these items rateably over the term of the lease. Additionally, the receipt of any lease incentives will be recorded
as a deferred lease inducement which will be amortized over the lease term as a reduction of rent expense.
Share-based compensation
Ratings maintains several incentive plans under which non-qualified share options, incentive units and restricted stock units (RSUs) may be granted
to employees, non-employee directors and management. The Company recognizes shared-based compensation costs for awards granted by the
parent to employees of the Company and its subsidiaries. No consideration is provided for the awards and as such is considered a capital
contribution. The Company recognizes share-based compensation expense based on the grant date estimated fair value of each award using an
estimated expected life, net of estimated forfeitures, over the employee’s requisite service period. For share-based compensation with a service and
a performance condition, share-based compensation cost is recognized on a straight-line basis over the vesting periods when it is probable the
performance condition will be met.
Pension obligations
The Company operates a defined contribution pension plan. The Company provides no other post-retirement benefits to its employees, including
directors. The defined contribution pension plan is privately administrated and the Company pays contributions on a contractual basis. The
contributions are recognized as a staff cost as they fall due.

Ratings Acquisition Corp
(operating as DBRS Group)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars, unless otherwise indicated)
For the period ended November 30, 2018
2

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Derivative instruments
The Company recognizes and measures all derivatives as either assets or liabilities at fair value in the consolidated statement of financial position.
The Company has a policy prohibiting speculative trading in derivatives. The Company may enter into derivatives that are not initially designated as
hedging instruments for accounting purposes, but which largely offset the economic impact of certain transactions. Gains or losses resulting from
changes in the fair value of derivatives are recorded in the consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive loss.
The Company limits its counterparty risk associated with derivative instruments by generally entering into international swaps and derivatives
association agreements with its financial institution. The Company continually monitors its positions, and the credit ratings of its counterparties, and
adjusts positions if appropriate.
Fair value measurements
•

Fair value hierarchy
Certain assets and liabilities are not measured at fair value on an ongoing basis but are subject to fair value adjustment in certain
circumstances. These items primarily include: (a) assets acquired and liabilities assumed initially measured at fair value in connection with the
application of acquisition accounting; (b) long-lived assets, reporting units with goodwill and intangible assets for which fair value is determined
as part of the related impairment tests; and (c) other assets and liabilities included on the balance sheet.
Fair value is defined as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants in the principal market, or if none exists, the most advantageous market, for the specific asset or liability at the
measurement date (the exit price). Valuation techniques used by the Company to measure fair value maximize the use of observable inputs
and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. The fair value should be based on assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability. The measurement of fair value is based on three levels of inputs, as follows:

•

Level 1 - quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company has the ability to access at the
measurement date;

•

Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. Level 2
inputs include: quoted market prices for similar assets or liabilities; quoted prices in markets that are not active; or, other inputs that are
observable or can be corroborated by observable market date of substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities; and

•

Level 3 - unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are significant to the fair value of the assets or liabilities.

Assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value are categorized in one of the three levels on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant
to its valuation.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Fair value measurements (continued)
•

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

The Company’s financial instruments include cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, accounts receivable, investments, certain other assets,
accounts payable and accrued liabilities, and long-term debt.
Certain derivatives are valued using various pricing models or discounted cash flow analyses that incorporate observable market parameters, such
as interest rate yield curves and currency rates, classified as Level 2 within the valuation hierarchy. Derivative valuations incorporate credit risk
adjustments that are necessary to reflect the probability of default by the counterparty or the Company.
The carrying amounts for cash and equivalents, accounts receivable and accounts payable and accrued liabilities approximate fair value based on
the short-term nature of these accounts.
The fair value of the investments is not readily determinable as these are investments in private entities classified as Level 3 inputs within the fair
value hierarchy.
The fair value of the Company’s long-term debt is measured using quoted offer-side prices when quoted market prices are available. If quoted
market prices are not available, the fair value is determined by discounting the future cash flows of each instrument at rates that reflect rates
currently observed in publicly traded debt markets for debt of similar terms to companies with comparable credit risk. For long-term debt
measurements, where the rates are not currently observable in publicly traded debt markets of similar terms to companies with comparable credit,
the Company uses market interest rates and adjusts that rate for all necessary risks, including its own credit risk. In determining an appropriate
spread to reflect its credit standing, the Company considers credit default swap spreads, bond yields of other long-term debt offered by the
Company, and interest rates currently offered to the Company for similar debt instruments of comparable maturities by the Company’s bankers as
well as other banks that regularly compete to provide financing to the Company. Fair values of variable rate term debt are classified as Level 2 inputs
within the fair value hierarchy.
Contingencies
The Company evaluates the need for loss accruals under the requirements of Topic 450 of the FASB ASC – Contingencies. Certain conditions may
exist which may result in a loss to the Company, but which will only be resolved when one or more future events occur or fail to occur. The
Company’s management and its legal counsel assess such contingent liabilities, and such assessment inherently involves an exercise of judgment.
In assessing loss contingencies related to legal proceedings that are pending against the Company, or unasserted claims that may result in such
proceedings, the Company’s legal counsel evaluates the perceived merits of any legal proceedings or unasserted claims as well as the perceived
merits of the amount of relief sought or expected to be sought therein. If the assessment of a contingency indicates that it is probable that a material
loss has been incurred and the amount of the liability can be estimated, the estimated liability would be accrued in the Company’s financial
statements. If the assessment indicates that a potentially material loss contingency is not probable but is reasonably possible, or is probable but
cannot be estimated, the nature of the contingent liability, together with an estimate of the range of possible loss if determinable and material, would
be
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Contingencies (continued)
disclosed. Loss contingencies considered remote are generally not disclosed unless they arise from guarantees, in which case the guarantees would
be disclosed. Contingencies are disclosed in Note 17.
Employee incentive plans
The Company has a certain cash settled long-term incentive plan for certain eligible employees recorded as a liability in the consolidated statement
of financial position. Employee incentive plans are recognized as a compensation cost over the vesting period as defined by the incentive plans.
Adjustments are made to the long-term incentive amount based on the fair value calculated at each measurement date, resulting in the measure of
compensation recorded as salary and benefits in the consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive income (loss).
Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognized when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, the services have been provided and accepted by the client, fees are
determinable and the collection of resulting receivables is considered probable.
Revenue attributed to initial ratings of securities is recognized when the rating is issued. Revenue attributed to new issuer fees are recognized upon
execution of the engagement letter. Maintenance/ surveillance revenue attributed to monitoring of issuers or issued securities is recognized over the
period in which the monitoring is performed. Revenue from the sale of research products and from credit risk management subscriptions is
recognized over the related subscription period.
Pursuant to the guidance in ASC 605-25, “Multiple-Element Arrangements” (“ASC 605-25”), when a sales arrangement contains multiple
deliverables, the Company allocates revenue to each deliverable based on its relative selling price which is determined based on its vendor specific
objective evidence (“VSOE”) if available, third party evidence (“TPE”) if VSOE of selling price is not available, or estimated selling price (“ESP”) if
neither VSOE nor TPE is available.
The Company’s products and services qualify as separate units of accounting under ASC 605-25. The Company evaluates each deliverable in an
arrangement to determine whether it represents a separate unit of accounting. A deliverable constitutes a separate unit of accounting when it has
stand-alone value to the customers and if the arrangement includes a customer refund or returns right relative to the delivered item, and the delivery
and performance of the undelivered item is considered probable and substantially in the Company’s control. In instances where the aforementioned
criteria are not met, the deliverable is combined with the undelivered items and revenue recognition is determined as one single unit.
Amounts billed in advance such as for maintenance/ surveillance and subscription services, are reflected on the balance sheet as deferred revenue
and classified as current when they are expected to be recognized within one year of the balance sheet date. Fees that are not expected to be
recognized within one year are classified as long-term. Volume based fees for ratings for single purpose vehicles that issue Commercial Papers are
calculated as a percentage of the outstanding security, and billed quarterly or annually in arrears. Furthermore, for certain annual monitoring
services, fees are not invoiced until the end of the annual monitoring period. Revenue is accrued over the monitoring period.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Discontinued operations
Discontinued operations comprise of those activities that were disposed of during the fiscal year or which were classified as held-for-sale at the end
of the fiscal year. These operations also represent a separate major line of business or geographical area that can be clearly distinguished for
operational and financial reporting purposes. Classification as a discontinued operation by the Company occurs at the earlier of disposal or when the
operation meets the criteria to be classified as held-for-sale. When an operation is classified as a discontinued operation, the comparative statement
of profit or loss and comprehensive income or loss is re-presented as if the operation had been discontinued from the beginning of the prior fiscal
period.
Newly released accounting standards not yet adopted
In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (the FASB) issued Accounting Standard Updated (ASU) No. 2014-09, Revenue from
Contracts with Customers (Topic 606) (ASU 2014-09), which supersedes the revenue recognition requirements in Accounting Standard Codification
605, Revenue Recognition. ASU 2014-09 requires entities to recognize revenue in a way that depicts the transfer of goods or services to customers
in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. ASU 2014-09 requires
an additional disclosure about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from customer contracts, including
significant judgments and changes in judgments and assets recognized from costs incurred to obtain or fulfill a contract. ASU 2014-09 is effective
retrospectively for fiscal years, and interim periods within those years, beginning after December 15, 2018. The Company is currently assessing the
impact of this standard on its financial statements.
In August 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-15, which provides guidance in GAAP about management’s responsibility to evaluate whether there is
substantial doubt about an entity’s ability to continue as a going concern and to provide related footnote disclosures. This standard is effective for all
entities for fiscal years and interim periods within those years, beginning after December 15, 2016. Early application is permitted. The Company has
assessed the standard and determined there is no substantial doubt about the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern.
In November 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-17, which simplifies the presentation of deferred income taxes, the amendments in this update
require that deferred income tax liabilities and assets be classified as noncurrent in a classified statement of financial position. For public business
entities, the amendments this Update are effective for financial statements issued for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2016, and
interim periods within those annual periods. For all other entities, the amendments in this Update are effective for financial statements issued for
annual periods beginning after December 15, 2017, and interim periods within annual periods beginning after December 15, 2018. The company
assessed the standard and determined it to be applicable and early adopted. The standard has been applied retroactively.

Ratings Acquisition Corp
(operating as DBRS Group)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars, unless otherwise indicated)
For the period ended November 30, 2018
2

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Newly released accounting standards not yet adopted (continued)
In January 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-01, Financial Instruments – Overall: Recognition and Measurement of Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities as an amendment to ASC Subtopic 825-10. The amendments in this update address certain aspects of recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of financial instruments. This amendment requires all equity investments to be measured at fair value with changes in
the fair value recognized through net income (other than those accounted for under equity method of accounting or those that result in consolidation
of the investee). The guidance is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2017, including interim periods within those annual periods.
Early adoption of this amendment is not permitted. The Company is currently assessing the impact of this standard on its financial statements.
In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842), to revise lease accounting guidance. The update requires most leases to be
recorded on the balance sheet as a lease liability, with a corresponding right-of-use asset, whereas many of these leases currently have an offbalance sheet classification. ASU 2016-02 must be applied on a modified retrospective basis and is effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2018, and interim periods within those years, with early adoption permitted. The Company is currently assessing the impact of this
standard on its financial statements.
In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments - Credit Losses (Topic 326): Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial
Instruments. ASU 2016-13 requires the measurement of all expected credit losses for financial assets held at the reporting date based on historical
experience, current conditions, and reasonable and supportable forecasts. Financial institutions and other organizations will now use forward-looking
information to better inform their credit loss estimates. ASU 2016-13 becomes effective for fiscal years and interim periods within those fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2019. The Company is currently assessing the impact of this standard on its financial statements.
In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-15, Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230): Classification of Certain Cash Receipts and Cash
Payments, which clarifies how companies present and classify certain cash receipts and cash payments in the statement of cash flows. The new
guidance is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2017. Early adoption is permitted. The Company is currently assessing the
impact of this standard on its financial statements.
In October 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-16, Income Taxes (Topic 740): Intra-Entity Transfers of Assets Other Than Inventory, which requires
entities to recognize the income tax effects of intercompany sales and transfers of assets, other than inventory, in the period in which the transfer
occurs. This is a change from current GAAP, which requires entities to defer the income tax effects of intercompany transfers of assets until the
asset has been sold to an outside party or otherwise recognized (i.e. depreciated, amortized, and impaired). The income tax effects of intercompany
sales and transfers of inventory will continue to be deferred until the inventory is sold to an outside party. This ASU is effective for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2017, and interim periods within those years, with early adoption permitted. The Company is currently assessing the
impact of this standard on its financial statements.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Newly released accounting standards not yet adopted (continued)
In November 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-18, Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230): Restricted Cash, to reduce diversity in practice
related to the classification and presentation of changes in restricted cash on the statement of cash flows under Topic 230, Statement of Cash
Flows. The revised guidance requires that amounts generally described as restricted cash and restricted cash equivalents be included with cash and
cash equivalents when reconciling the beginning-of-period and end-of-period total amounts shown on the statement of cash flows. The guidance will
be applied on a retrospective basis beginning with the earliest period presented. The amendments in this ASU are effective for annual and interim
periods beginning after December 15, 2017. The Company is currently assessing the impact of this standard on its financial statements.
In August 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017-12, Derivatives and Hedging (Topic 815): Targeted Improvements to Accounting for Hedging
Activities. The new standard refines and expands hedge accounting for both financial and commodity risks. Its provisions create more transparency
around how economic results are presented, both on the face of the financial statements and in the footnotes. The new guidance is effective for
fiscal years, and interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning after December 15, 2018. Early adoption is permitted. The Company is currently
assessing the impact of this standard on its financial statements.
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Accounts receivable, net
Accounts receivable as at November 30, 2018 consist of the following balances:

Trade receivables
Other receivables
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts

2018
29,057
6,725
35,782

$
$

4

2017
32,200
146
(50)
32,296

$
$

Property and equipment, net
Property and equipment, net as at November 30, 2018 consists of the following:
Accumulated
Depreciation

Cost
Computer equipment
Office equipment
Telephone system
Leasehold improvements

$

$

1,732
3,409
1,015
14,107
20,263

$

$

1,237
961
700
2,677
5,575

November 30, 2018
Net Book Value

November 30, 2017
Net Book Value

$

$

$

495
2,448
315
11,430
14,688

$

446
1,207
417
6,926
8,996
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Property and equipment, net (continued)
Depreciation expense on property and equipment of $2,147 for the period (2017 - $3,297) was recorded in amortization expense in the consolidated
statement of operations and comprehensive income (loss). Amortization is recognized on a straight-line basis over the life of the asset.

5

Intangible assets, net including goodwill
Intangible assets as at November 30, 2018 consist of the following:
Cost

Definite-lived intangible assets:
Customer relationships
Technology
Computer software obtained for
internal use
Indefinite-lived intangible assets:
Trademarks
Goodwill

$

$

277,764
25,343

Accumulated
Amortization
$

95,156
15,840

November 30, 2018
Net Book Value

November 30, 2017
Net Book Value

$

$

182,608
9,503

206,982
13,623

7,809

3,407

4,402

4,173

101,349
302,038
714,303

114,403

101,349
302,038
599,900

99,682
298,322
622,782

$

$

$

Weighted
average life
8.5
6
3-5

Amortization expense on definite-lived intangible assets of $30,769 for the period (2017 - $29,446) was recorded in amortization expense in the
consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive income (loss). Amortization is recognized on a straight-line basis over the life of the asset.
The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill in total are summarized as follows:
Balance - November 30, 2017
Foreign Exchange
Balance - November 30, 2018

$ 298,322
3,716
$ 302,038

Amortization of the intangible assets are as follows:
Year ending November 30,
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
Thereafter

$

29,785
29,611
26,356
24,736
19,462
65,947
$ 195,897
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Long-term debt
Long-term debt as at November 30, 2018 consists of the following:
2018
Secured term loan facility
Debt issuance costs

$

Less: current portion
$

287,855
1,180
289,035
5,234
283,801

2017
$

$

282,204
(1,881)
280,323
2,902
277,421

On March 4, 2015, DBRS Canada and DBRS US, as co-borrowers entered into a credit agreement with Credit Suisse AG (credit agreement), which
provides for a term loan with a principal amount of US$225 million under a secured term loan facility (term loan) and a revolver facility (revolver) of
up to US$40 million. The US$225 million term loan has been allocated US$125 million to DBRS Canada and US$100 million to DBRS US,
respectively.
The term loan matures on March 4, 2022 where the principal amounts amortize in quarterly instalments, with the balance due at the maturity date.
Interest accrues at a rate of LIBOR plus 5.25% per annum on the term loan. Early prepayments can be made on the term loan at no penalty,
provided the payments are made after the 12-month anniversary of the closing date of the credit agreement. Interest expense of $20.9 million (2017
- $18.5 million) was recorded related to the term loan for the period.
The revolver matures on March 4, 2020 and accrues interest at a rate of LIBOR plus 4.50% or 5.00% annually, depending on certain leverage
ratios. Interest expense of $nil (2017 - $150 thousand) was recorded related to the revolver for period as there was no withdrawal on the revolver.
Also included in the credit agreement is a swing-line facility of US$10 million, which was not utilized at November 30, 2018. The fair value of longterm debt as at November 30, 2018 approximates its book value.
Covenants
The credit agreement contains a number of affirmative and negative covenants that, among other things, limit or restrict the ability to incur additional
indebtedness and liens, sell assets, fundamentally change business models, acquire other companies, or make certain investments. The credit
agreement requires the maintenance of one financial ratio.
Senior secured first lien net leverage ratio means, as of any date of determination, the ratio, on a pro forma basis, of: (i) consolidated senior secured
first lien indebtedness as of such date to; (ii) consolidated earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) for the most
recently completed test period.
If the sum of the aggregate principal amount of the revolver outstanding at the end of the period plus the aggregate principal amount of swing-line
loans then outstanding exceeds 30.0% of the aggregate principal amount of revolving commitment then the senior secured first lien net leverage
ratio is not permitted to exceed 7.25:1 until May 31, 2016 and 7.00:1 thereafter. As at November 30, 2018, the Company was in compliance with all
covenants of the credit agreement.
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Long-term debt (continued)
Deferred financing costs
In connection with the credit agreement, the Company incurred US$10.6 million of deferred financing costs that was recorded as a direct reduction
against the term loan and is being amortized over the term of the loan into interest expense using the interest rate method. The amortization of
deferred financing costs included in interest expense was $3.0 million for the period ending November 30, 2018 (2017 - $3.8 million).
Maturities
The aggregate maturities of long-term debt as at November 30, 2018 are as follows:

2019
2020
2021
2022

$

Deferred financing fees
$

5,234
5,981
5,981
270,659
287,855
1,180
289,035
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Income taxes
The tax-effected temporary differences, which gave rise to deferred tax assets and liabilities as at November 30, 2018, consisted of the following:
Deferred tax assets
Temporary differences related to:
Deferred lease inducement and deferred revenue
Accelerated capital allowances
Other
Tax depreciation in excess of accounting depreciation on property and equipment
Net operating loss carry forwards
Finance costs
Net capital losses
Deferred lease inducement and deferred revenue
AMT Credit Carryforwards

Deferred tax liabilities
Temporary differences related to:
Tax depreciation in excess of accounting depreciation on property and equipment
Intangible assets
Unrealized gain on swap
Tax reserve
Unrealized loss
Other
Net Deferred Tax Liability

2018

2017

$

367
118
214
2,129
872
4,133
333

$

253
100
102
153
3,132
767
120
5,078
219

$

8,166

$

9,924

$

1,947
72,773
339
439
12

$

458
91,447
339
1,385
562
10

$

75,510

$

94,201

$

67,344

$

84,277
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Income taxes (continued)
Income tax expense for the period comprises the following:
2018
$
6,571
468

2017
$
7,046
326

$

7,039 $

7,372

$

$
(5,216)
(9,998)
(1,232)
(342)
(487)
(17,275) $

Current tax provision
DBRS Canada
DBRS US

Deferred tax provision
DBRS Canada
DBRS US
DBRS UK
AAA UK Acquisition Co. Limited
DBRS Germany

$
(5,243)
(212)
(164)
(33)
(5,652)

DBRS UK had trade loss carry-forwards of £4,135 as at November 30, 2018 (2017 - £8,133). The valuation allowance of loss carry forwards was
released in 2018 as Management believes it is more likely than not that the Company will realize the benefit of the net capital loss carry forwards.
These losses are not subject to expiry.
As at November 30, 2018, the Company had $4,027 (2017 - $2,672) of uncertain tax positions (UTPs). The Company classifies interest related to
UTPs in interest expense in its consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive loss. Penalties, if incurred, would be recognized in other
non-operating expenses. During the period November 30, 2018, the amount of net interest accrued for UTPs was $279 (2017 - $92). As at
November 30, 2018, the amount of accrued interest recorded in the Company’s consolidated statement of financial position related to UTPs was
$637 (2017 - $358). DBRS US reclassified its deferred tax liability related to the disgorgement settlement to an UTP as no net operating losses are
available to offset this liability.
A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of UTPs is as follows:

Balance - Beginning of period
Additions for the tax position
Interest accrued
Foreign exchange
Balance - End of period

$

2018
$
2,672
954
279
122
4,027

$

2017
$
2,780
92
(200)
2,672
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Income taxes (continued)
The Company’s subsidiaries are subject to Canadian income tax, US federal and state income tax as well as income tax in the United Kingdom. Tax
filings in Canada and the US since 2011 remain open to examination. Tax filings in the UK since 2012 remain open to examination.
It is also possible that new issues might be raised by tax authorities which might necessitate increases to the balance of UTPs. As the Company is
unable to predict the timing or conclusion of these audits, the Company is unable to estimate the amount of changes to the balance of UTPs at this
time. However, the Company believes it has adequately provided for its financial exposure for all open tax years by tax jurisdiction.
A reconciliation of the statutory tax rate to the Company’s effective tax rate on income before provision for income taxes is as follows:

Statutory Rate
Difference between local and foreign tax rates
Non deductible expenses
Valuation allowance on loss carry forwards
Change in tax rate
Income not taxable
Current tax true up
Deferred tax true up
Non taxable portion of gains and losses
Unrecorded temporary differences
Other

8

For the period from
December 1, 2017 to
November 30, 2018
19.00%

For the period from
December 1, 2016 to
November 30, 2017
19.33%

(26.91%)
(12.78%)
15.54%
(173.14%)
(2.12%)
1.38%
0.00%
1.29%
(47.98%)
(3.22%)
(228.94%)

6.22%
3.73%
0.00%
8.68%
0.00%
(1.20%)
(4.85%)
(1.78%)
(9.77%)
2.58%
22.94%

Employee incentive plan

Bonus payable (short term incentive plan)
Long term incentive plan

$
$

2018
26,496
26,496

$
$

2017
27,340
724
28,064

Effective December 1, 2013, the predecessor Company, DBRS Holdings Limited, established a cash settled long-term incentive plan (the 2014
LTIP) for eligible employees of DBRS Canada, DBRS US and DBRS UK, subsidiaries of the Company. The 2014 LTIP awards were granted in early
2014 and vest evenly over a three-year term. $nil were accrued as of November 30, 2018 (2017 - $724). The Company records a liability as the
awards vest, no further awards will be granted under the 2014 LTIP.
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Other liabilities
Other liabilities consists of the following balances:
2018
Current:
Deferred lease inducement
$

954
954

$

1,584
1,584

$

3,182
3,182

$

1,471
1,471

2017
Shares

Amount ($)

Long Term:
Deferred lease inducement

10

2017

Capital stock and mezzanine equity
Authorized
Unlimited common shares
Unlimited Class A preferred shares
Issued
2018
Shares
Balance - Beginning of period
Shares issued
Balance - End of period

24,950,210
24,950,210

$

Amount ($)
197,972
-

24,950,210
-

197,972

24,950,210

197,972
$

197,972

Holders of common shares are entitled to one vote per share, and to receive dividends and, on liquidation or dissolution, are entitled to receive all
assets available for distribution to shareholders. The holders have no pre-emptive or other subscription rights and there are no redemption or sinking
fund provisions with respect to such shares. Common shares are subordinate to the Class A preferred shares below with respect to dividend rights
and rights on liquidation, winding up and dissolution of the Company.
Class A preferred shares
2018
Shares
Balance - Beginning of period
Shares redeemed
Balance - End of period

85,778,888
(4,959,370)
80,819,518 $

Amount ($)
85,779
(4,959)
80,820

2017
Shares
91,038,876
(5,259,988)
85,778,888 $

Amount ($)
91,039
(5,260)
85,779

In connection with the transactions, 100,000,000 Class A cumulative compounding perpetual voting preferred shares were issued at a total
purchase price of $100 million or $1.00 per share (the Purchase Price). No issuance costs were incurred.

Ratings Acquisition Corp
(operating as DBRS Group)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars, unless otherwise indicated)
For the period ended November 30, 2018
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Capital stock and mezzanine equity (continued)
The Class A preferred shares will accrue an annual dividend of 6.0% until March 4, 2022, at which point the dividend will increase by 100 basis
points to a maximum of 8.0% as at March 4, 2024. The dividend is only payable upon approval by the Board, or when a liquidity event occurs. The
annual dividend will accrue on a daily basis on the sum of the value of the shares plus all accrued dividends, whether or not there are funds legally
available for the payment of dividends. All accrued dividends accumulate and compound on a quarterly basis.
All outstanding Class A preferred shares are mandatorily redeemable in the event of liquidity or the option of the Company in whole or in part subject
to certain restrictions. Liquidity events are events that result in significant changes to the ownership of the Company. The Company has an
agreement to redeem an agreed amount of Class A preferred shares based on a pre-set schedule, assuming the Company meets certain criteria at
each repayment date. The agreement continues indefinitely, and is subject to certain restrictions, including ensuring the redemption does not cause a
violation of any debt covenants. Assuming the Company in compliance with all covenants, the Company would be required to pay approximately 6%
of the face value of the preferred shares per year.
Holders of the Class A preferred shares have voting rights equal to 10.1% of the issued voting share capital of the Company. Except as otherwise
provided holders of the preferred shares and common shares vote together as a single class.
The Class A preferred shares are presented outside of permanent equity and are measured at their redemption amount. The liquidation value is
$100 million.
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Treasury shares
Treasury shares of 32,125 shares were repurchased at a premium in 2018 (2017: 803,303) and of those, nil were reissued for a net cash outlay of
$571.
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Share-based compensation
Ratings Acquisition Corp. 2015 Stock Option and Restricted Stock Unit Plan
On March 4, 2015, and restated as at March 31, 2015, the Board of Directors approved the Ratings Acquisition Corp. 2015 Stock Option and
Restricted Stock Unit Plan (2015 plan) granted to certain employees and directors of the Company.
As part of the 2015 plan, there were 728,276 options authorized and granted as of November 30, 2018, whereas each option can be exercised,
once vested, for one common share. The exercise price is equal to the fair value of a common share on the grant date and the term of the options
shall commence on the grant date and expire on the tenth anniversary thereof, unless the options shall have been earlier terminated in accordance
with the terms of the 2015 plan.
Options granted include a service component as well as a performance component. The service component vests in five equal instalments annually
on each of the first five anniversaries of the grant date. The performance component vests pursuant to the achievement of certain performance
conditions and is expensed based on a graded vesting schedule if performance conditions are met. The performance condition would mean any
event such as a change of control or an

Ratings Acquisition Corp
(operating as DBRS Group)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars, unless otherwise indicated)
For the period ended November 30, 2018
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Share-based compensation (continued)
Initial Public Offering. The Company reassesses the probability of vesting at each reporting period for awards with performance conditions and
adjusts compensation cost based on its probability assessment.
During the operating year, 60,000 additional options were granted and 37,360 options were forfeited. 3,307 options were exercised during the
period. As at November 30, 2018 there were 728,276 options outstanding.
The following table summarizes the options outstanding under the 2015 plan:

Outstanding - Beginning of period
Granted
Exercised
Forfeited
Balance - End of period

Number of
Weighted Average
Options
Exercise Price ($)
708,943
8.07
60,000
17.14
(3,307)
7.93
(37,360)
8.12
728,276
8.82

The following table summarizes the RSUs outstanding under the 2015 plan:

Balance - Beginning of period
Granted
Exercised
Forfeited
Balance - End of period

Number of
Options
310,238
310,238

Weighted Average
Exercise Price
9.67
9.67

Ratings Acquisition Corp. 2015 Incentive Share Plan
On March 4, 2015, and restated as at March 31, 2015, the Board of Directors approved the 2015 Incentive Share Plan (2015 Incentive Plan) granted
to certain employees of the Company.
As part of the 2015 Incentive Plan, there were 1,887,981 Class A incentive shares authorized to be granted.
The Class A incentive shares granted include a service component as well as a performance component. The service component vests in five equal
instalments annually on each of the first five anniversaries of the grant date. The performance component vests pursuant to the achievement of
certain performance conditions and is expensed based on a graded vesting schedule if performance conditions are met. The performance condition
would mean any event such as a change of control or an Initial Public Offering. Both conditions must be met to allow the awards to exercise. The
Company reassesses the probability of vesting at each reporting period for awards with performance conditions and adjusts compensation cost
based on its probability assessment.

Ratings Acquisition Corp
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars, unless otherwise indicated)
For the period ended November 30, 2018
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Share-based compensation (continued)
Ratings Acquisition Corp. 2015 Incentive Share Plan (continued)
The Company granted an additional 45,000 Class A incentive shares during the period. During the period zero shares were forfeited and none have vested or
settled. At November 30, 2018 1,887,981 Class A incentive shares were outstanding.
The Company recorded stock-based compensation expense of $31,665 for the period of December 1, 2017 to November 30, 2018 ($nil for the period of December
1, 2016 to November 30, 2017) for employees that left the company. The compensation cost will only be recorded if a liquidity event is deemed probable.
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Financial instruments
Cross currency interest rate swap
The Company entered into a cross currency interest rate swap with Credit Suisse International to manage its exposure related to changes in interest rates on $198
million of variable rate debt instruments most particularly the US$225 million variable rate LIBOR debt entered into to finance the Transaction (note 6). The crosscurrency interest rate swap had a notional amount totaling US$158 million and matures on February 2020. The fair value of the interest rate swap as at November
30, 2018 is an asset of $7,082 (2017 - $2,962) and is recorded in other assets in the consolidated statement of financial position. The fair value of the interest rate
agreement was calculated using a net present value of future discounted cash flows using the following significant inputs: the term of the swap, the notional
amount of the swap, discount rates interpolated based on relevant swap curves, the rate on the fixed leg of the swap and a Level 2 input.
By effectively converting the interest rates from variable to fixed, the Company has eliminated the volatility.
Credit risk
The Company is exposed to credit risk resulting from the possibility counterparties may default on their financial obligations. Financial instruments that potentially
subject the Company to credit risk principally consist of cash, restricted cash, accounts receivable and derivative instruments. The Company manages its credit risk
exposure on cash by allocating its cash equivalents among various high-grade term deposits and money market mutual funds. Credit risk on accounts receivable is
managed through credit management procedures in place to ensure clients are creditworthy and to mitigate the risk to any one party and to the aggregate balance.
Management does not estimate the Company has any significant credit risk with respect to any single client. Credit risk is the failure of the counterparty to perform
under the terms of the derivative contract. When the fair value of a derivative contract is positive, the counterparty owes the Company, which creates credit risk for
the Company. When the fair value of a derivative contract is negative, the Company owes the counterparty and, therefore, the Company is not exposed to the
counterparty’s credit risk in those circumstances. The Company minimizes counterparty credit risk in derivative instruments by entering into transactions with high
quality counterparties. The derivative instruments entered by the Company do not contain credit risk related contingent features.
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Comprehensive income
Comprehensive income includes all changes in equity during the period, except those resulting from transactions with shareholders. Comprehensive
income is comprised of net income and other comprehensive income. Accumulated other comprehensive income reported on the consolidated
statement of financial position consists of foreign currency translation adjustments.
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Commitments
The minimum lease payments under operating leases are as follows:
Year ending November 30,
2019 $
2020
2021
2022
2023
Thereafter
$

5,230
6,436
6,261
5,309
5,627
32,890
61,753

The Company, in support of the lease commitments, has issued letter of credit in the amount of $500,000 USD, with expiry dates ending January
31, 2034, as security deposits on leased office spaces.
16

Supplemental cash flow information
Income taxes paid - DBRS Canada
Income taxes paid - DBRS US
Interest on debt - DBRS Canada
Interest on debt - DBRS US

$

$
17

2018
9,645 $
1,110
11,489
9,494
31,738 $

2017
5,173
410
10,250
10,038
25,871

Contingencies
DBRS Group is not involved in any legal proceedings which are expected to have a material effect on its business, financial position, results of
operations or liquidity, nor is DBRS Group aware of any proceedings that are pending or threatened which may have a material effect on the
business, financial position, and results of operations or liquidity.
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Discontinued operations
During fiscal 2018, the Company made the decision to discontinue operations for the entity DBRS Ratings Mexico, Institucion Calificadora de
Valores, S.A. de C.V. by disposing the entity through a dissolution. The decision was made after determining that it would take a significant amount
of time and investment in order to build a solid book of business given that the Company was only able to obtain, and rate local ratings and the fees
associated with local ratings are significantly lower than global ratings which represents DBRS’ core operations.
Major classes of line items constituting net loss from discontinued operations:
Period ended
November 30, 2018
Revenue
Fees
Expenses
Salaries and benefits
Employee incentive plans
General and administrative
Rent and operating
Amortization and depreciation
Foreign exchange loss (gain)
Transaction and other

$
$

$
$

Loss from discontinued operations before income taxes
Income tax expense
Net loss from discontinued operations before income taxes

$

68
899
(26)
421
61
20
58
95
1,528
(1,460)
(1,460)

Period ended
November 30, 2017
$
$

$
$
$

88
564
154
462
59
20
(9)
127
1,377
(1,289)
(1,289)

The following provides additional information with respect to amounts included in the November 30, 2018 and November 30, 2017 balance sheets
as assets and liabilities of discontinued operations:
Carrying amounts of major classes of assets included as part of discontinued operations

Accounts receivable, net
Prepaid expenses
Current portion of assets of discontinued operations
Property and equipment, net
Intangible assets
Total assets of discontinued operations
Carrying amounts of major classes of liabilities included as part of discontinued operations
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Employee incentive plans
Current portion deferred revenue
Current portion of liabilities of discontinued operations
Total liabilities of discontinued operations

$

$

$

$

As at November 30,
2018
32
3
35
35

87
87
87

$

As at November 30,
2017
172
57
229
29
22
280

97
173
48
318
318

Ratings Acquisition Corp
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Discontinued operations (continued)
The cash flows from discontinued operations for periods ended November 30, 2018 and November 30, 2017 are as follows:
Period ended
November 30,
2018
Cash Provided By (Used In)
Operating Activities
Net loss for discontinued operations
Items Not Affecting Cash:
Amortization and depreciation
Unrealized foreign exchange on balances
Net Changes in Non-Cash Working Capital Related to Discontinued
Operations
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses and other
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Employee incentive plans
Deferred revenue
Net cash flows from operating activities for discontinued operations
Investing Activities
Purchase of fixed assets
Purchase of intangible assets
Net cash flows from investing activities for discontinued operations
Financing Activities
Loans paid to related parties
Net cash flows from financing activities for discontinued operations
Net change in cash for discontinued operations

19

$

(1,460) $

Period ended
November 30,
2017
(1,289)

20
67
180
52
(50)
(168)
(47)
(1,406)

20
(49)
(48)
(24)
39
48
(1,303)

13
17
30

$

(1,376) $

(25)
(25)
(1,328)

Subsequent events
We have considered all subsequent events through April 12, 2019 the date the financial statements were available for issuance.

20

Changes to prior year comparatives
Prior year comparatives have been restated to conform to the current year presentation. The only change is the separate presentation of
discontinued operations and restatement of treasury shares. The following financial statement lines were impacted:
Balance Sheet
· Accounts receivable, net
· Prepaid expenses
· Property and equipment, net
· Current portion of deferred revenue
· Deferred revenue

Ratings Acquisition Corp
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the period ended November 30, 2018
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Changes to prior year comparatives (continued)
Statement of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss)
· Fees
· Salaries and benefits
· General and administrative
· Rent and operating
· Amortization and depreciation
· Foreign exchange (gain) loss
· Transaction and other
Statement of Cash Flows
· Operating Activities
o Net income from continuing operations
o Items not affecting cash:
§ Amortization and depreciation
§ Unrealized foreign exchange on balances
o Net changes in working capital related to cash:
§ Accounts receivable
§ Prepaid expenses
§ Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
§ Deferred revenue
o Net cash flows from operating activities for continuing operations
o Net cash flows from operating activities for discontinued operations
· Investing activities
o Purchase of fixed assets
o Net cash flows from investing activities for continuing operations
o Net cash flows from investing activities for discontinued operations
· Financing activities
o Loans (paid) received from related parties
o Net cash flows from financing activities for continuing operations

Ratings Acquisition Corp
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Consolidated Financial Statements
November 30, 2017
(expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars, unless otherwise
indicated)

April 13, 2018

Report of Independent Auditors
To the Board of Directors of
Ratings Acquisition Corp

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Ratings Acquisition Corp which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as of November 30,
2017, the related consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss), share capital and other shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the year then
ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.
Management’s responsibility for the consolidated financial statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditors’ responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the Company’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of Ratings Acquisition
Corp as of November 30, 2017, and the results of its consolidated operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.
“/s/PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP”

Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants
Oakville, Canada

Report of Independent Auditors
To the Board of Directors
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Ratings Acquisition Corp and its subsidiaries which comprise the consolidated balance sheet
as of November 30, 2016, the related consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss, share capital and other shareholders' equity and cash flows for the
year then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.
Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditors' Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the Company's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated balance sheet of Ratings Acquisition
Corp as of November 30, 2016, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.
“/s/PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP”
Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants
August 17, 2017
Toronto, Canada
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
(expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars, unless otherwise indicated)
As at November 30,2017
November 30, 2017

November 30, 2016

Notes
Assets
Current
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net
Prepaid expenses and other
Deferred tax assets

$
3
7

Investments
Property and equipment, net
Other assets
Intangible assets
Goodwill
Swap receivable

4
5
5
13
$

40,100 $
32,468
5,449
455
78,472

14,240
29,767
4,442
2,207
50,656

704
9,025
255
324,482
298,322
2,962
714,222 $

677
7,717
275
356,405
303,399
8,000
727,129

12,282 $
28,237
31,436
2,902
1,584
76,441
18,363
277,421
84,732
2,672
303
1,471
461,403

10,859
18,883
1,064
29,126
3,022
1,125
64,079
16,080
287,885
93,430
2,780
275
2,005
466,534

Liabilities
Current
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Employee incentive plans
Income taxes payable
Current portion deferred revenue
Current portion of long-term debt
Other

$
8

6
9

Deferred revenue
Long-term debt
Deferred tax liabilities
Unrecognized tax benefits
Asset retirement obligation
Other

6
7
7
9

Commitments (Note 15), Contingencies (Note 17) and Subsequent Event (Note 18)
Mezzanine equity
Class A preferred shares
Share capital and other shareholders' equity
Share capital
Treasury shares
Dividends paid
Contributed surplus
Deficit
Accumulated other comprehensive income

10

85,779

10
11

197,972
(571)
(1,320)
(276)
(31,001)
2,236
167,040
714,222 $

14
$

Approved on Behalf of the Board

Director

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

91,039

197,972
(584)
1,122
(35,489)
6,535
169,556
727,129

Ratings Acquisition Corp
(operating as DBRS Group)
Consolidated Statement of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss)
(expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars, unless otherwise indicated)
For the period ended November 30,2017

Period ended
November 30, 2017

Notes

Period ended
November 30, 2016

Revenue
Fees

$

208,587
208,587

$

168,547
168,547

Salaries and benefits
Employee incentive plans
General and administrative
Rent and operating
Amortization and depreciation
Provision for (recovery of) doubtful accounts

$

$

$

85,688
26,564
29,701
7,874
32,763
27
182,617
25,970

$

82,674
21,159
35,436
7,471
31,970
(61)
178,649
(10,102)

$

22,522
(2,854)
94
19,762
6,208

$

23,898
3,896
(781)
27,013
(37,115)

$

7,372
(5,652)
4,488

$

3,341
(14,512)
(25,944)

$

(4,299)
189

$

1,557
(24,387)

Expenses

4,5

Operating income (loss)
Other expenses
Interest
Foreign exchange (gain) loss
Transaction and other
Income (loss) before income taxes
Income taxes
Current
Deferred
Net income (loss)

7
7

Other comprehensive income (loss)
Currency translation adjustment

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Share Capital and other Shareholders’ Equity
(expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars, unless otherwise indicated)
For the period ended November 30,2017

Balance, December 1, 2015
Share issuance
Return of capital
Net loss
Dividends paid
Currency translation adjustment
Balance, November 30, 2016

$

$

Share
capital
206,335
34,251
(42,614)
197,972

$

$

Share
capital
Balance, December 1, 2016
Treasury shares repurchased
Net income
Dividends paid
Currency translation adjustment
Balance, November 30, 2017

$

197,972

$

197,972

Treasury
stock
-

$

$

Treasury
stock
$

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

(571)
(571)

Dividends
paid
(584)
(584)

Contributed
surplus
$
1,122
$
1,122

Dividends
paid
$

(584)

$

(736)
(1,320)

$

$

Contributed
surplus
$

$

1,122
(1,398)
(276)

Retained
earnings
(9,545)
(25,944)
(35,489)

Accumulated
other
comprehensive
income
$
4,978
1,557
$
6,535

Total
shareholder's
equity
$
202,890
34,251
(42,614)
(25,944)
(584)
1,557
$
169,556

Retained
earnings

Accumulated
other
comprehensive
income

Total
shareholder's
equity

$

6,535

$

$

(4,299)
2,236

$

$

(35,489)

$

4,488
(31,001)

169,556
(1,969)
4,488
(736)
(4,299)
167,040

Ratings Acquition Corp
(operating as DBRS Group)
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
(expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars, unless otherwise indicated)
For the period ended November 30,2017
Period ended
November 30, 2017

Period ended
November 30, 2016

Cash Provided By (Used In)
Operating Activities
Net Income (Loss) for the Period

$

4,488

(25,945)

32,763
400
5,037
(9,346)
(5,652)
17
3,853

31,970
(101)
(390)
716
(14,512)
296
(1,360)
3,971

(2,720)
906
(1,028)
(488)
(464)
9,542
5,315
42,623

(727)
8,127
(1,027)
(1,509)
(1,182)
(4,864)
3,082
(3,455)

Investing Activities
Purchase of fixed assets
Purchase of intangible assets
Net cash flows from investing activities

(3,428)
(2,572)
(6,000)

(9,031)
(9,031)

Financing Activities
Proceeds from issuance of share capital
Interest payable on related party loans
Return of capital
Treasury shares
Redemption of preferred shares
Dividends paid
Loans paid to third parties
Loans (paid) received from related parties
Net cash flows from financing activities

(571)
(5,260)
(736)
(2,921)
(9,488)

34,251
(3)
(42,614)
(8,961)
(584)
(2,971)
(10,461)
(31,343)

Net change in cash
Effects of exchange rates changes on cash
Cash, beginning of period
Cash, end of period

27,135
(1,275)
14,240
40,100 $

(43,829)
4,412
53,657
14,240

Items Not Affecting Cash:
Amortization and depreciation
Amortization of deferred lease inducements
Swap receivable
Unrealized foreign exchange on balances
Deferred income taxes
Asset retirement obligation
Goodwill adjustment
Discount on loans paid to third parties
Net Changes in Non-Cash Working Capital Related to Operations
Accounts receivable
Income taxes
Prepaid expenses and other
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Lease abandonment payable
Employee incentive plans
Deferred revenue
Net cash flows from operating activities

See note 16 for supplementary cash flow information
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

$
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Description of business and organization
a)

Description of business

Ratings Acquisition Corp (Ratings) is a private company incorporated on December 17, 2014 in the Cayman Islands. The subsidiaries consist of
DBRS, Inc. (DBRS US), DBRS Limited (DBRS Canada) and DBRS Ratings Limited (DBRS UK) and DBRS Ratings Mexico, Institucion Calificadora
de Valores, S.A. de C. (DBRS Mexico). References herein to the Company refer to Ratings and its wholly owned subsidiaries.
Each wholly owned subsidiary is a recognized international full-service rating agency that provides timely and comprehensive rating opinions to the
world’s markets. Privately owned and independent, the subsidiaries offer in-depth credit ratings on issuers of commercial paper, bonds, long/shortterm debt, and preferred shares, as well as asset-backed securities in the corporate, financial institution, public finance, and structured finance
industries. The subsidiaries also offer industry analysis, rating reports, and ratings indices for issuers and investors in North America, Europe, Asia,
and Latin America.
All references to $ or dollars are to the currency of Canada unless otherwise indicated. All references to US dollars or US$ are to the currency of the
United States unless otherwise indicated. All references to British pounds or £ are to the currency of the United Kingdom unless otherwise indicated.
2

Summary of significant accounting policies
Basis of presentation and principles of consolidation
The Company prepares its consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America (US GAAP).
The consolidated financial statements include the results and balances of the Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries (DBRS Canada, DBRS
US, DBRS UK and DBRS Mexico, AAA UK Acquisition Co Limited., and AAA UK Holding Co Limited.). Intercompany balances and transactions
among consolidated entities have been eliminated on consolidation.
The Company’s reporting currency is the Canadian dollar.
1
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Foreign currency translation
The functional currency of the Ratings Acquisition Corp is the US dollar, as the majority of its cash flows are in US dollars. The functional currency of
each of the Company’s subsidiaries is typically the primary currency in which each subsidiary operates, which is primarily the Canadian dollar, US
dollar, pound sterling or Mexican peso. Foreign currency balance sheets are translated using the period-end exchange rates, and the consolidated
statement of operations and comprehensive income (loss) and consolidated statement of cash flows are translated at the average exchange rates
for each period. The translation adjustments resulting from the translation of foreign currency financial statements are recorded in accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss) in the consolidated statement of financial position.
Use of estimates
The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with US GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the consolidated financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
Significant items subject to such estimates and assumptions include: revenue recognition, valuations used when assessing potential impairment of
long-lived assets and goodwill, the estimation of the useful life of property and equipment, the liability for employee incentive plans, deferred tax
assets, derivative financial instruments, fair value of assets and liabilities acquired in a business acquisition, and valuation of share-based
compensation. Estimates and assumptions used are based on factors such as historical experience, the observance of trends in the industries in
which the Company operates and information available from the Company’s customers and outside sources. While management applies its
judgment based on assumptions believed to be reasonable under the circumstances and at the time, actual results could vary from these
assumptions, and estimates may vary depending on the assumptions used. The Company evaluates and updates its assumptions and estimates
based on new events occurring, additional information being obtained or more experience being acquired.
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and balances with banks. Cash equivalents principally consist of investments, which are highly
liquid and have original maturities of three months or less.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Accounts receivable allowance
The Company records an allowance for estimated future credit notes as a reduction of revenue based on management’s best estimate. The
estimated amount of uncollectible receivables is recorded as an allowance for bad debts. Credit notes issued for uncollectible amounts are charged
against the allowance. The Company evaluates its accounts receivable allowance by reviewing and assessing historical collection and adjustment
experience and the current status of customer accounts. The Company also considers the economic environment of the customers, both from an
industry and geographic perspective, in evaluating the need for allowances. Based on its analysis, the Company adjusts its allowance as considered
appropriate in the circumstances.
Comprehensive income
Comprehensive income represents the change in net assets of a business enterprise during a period due to transactions and other events and
circumstances from non-owner sources including foreign currency translation impacts.
Property and equipment - net
Property and equipment are stated cost less accumulated amortization and are amortized using the straight-line method over their estimated useful
lives. Major improvements are capitalized while expenditures for maintenance and repairs that do not extend the economic useful life of the related
assets are expensed when incurred. The amortization rates for property and equipment are as follows:
Computer equipment
Office equipment
Leasehold improvements

3 years
5 years
shorter or useful life or lease term

Goodwill
Goodwill is an asset representing the future economic benefits arising from other assets acquired in a business combination that are not individually
identified and separately recognized.
Goodwill is tested for impairment on an annual basis and more often if an event occurs or circumstances change that indicates impairment might
exist. The Company tests its goodwill at the appropriate reporting unit level. The Company’s impairment review for goodwill consists of a qualitative
assessment of whether it is more likely than not that a reporting unit’s fair value is less than its carrying amount, and if required, followed by a twostep process of determining the fair value of the reporting unit and comparing it to the carrying value of the net assets allocated to the reporting unit.
If the two-step goodwill impairment test is required, first, the fair value of the reporting unit is compared with its carrying amount (including goodwill).
If the fair value of the reporting unit is less than its carrying amount, an indication of goodwill impairment exists for the reporting unit and the entity
must perform step two of the impairment test (measurement). Under step two, an impairment loss is recognized for any excess of the carrying
amount of the reporting unit’s goodwill over the implied fair value of that goodwill. The implied fair value of goodwill is determined by allocating the
fair value of the reporting unit in a manner similar to a purchase price allocation and the residual fair value after this allocation is the implied fair
value of the reporting unit’s goodwill. Fair value of the reporting unit is determined using a
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Goodwill (continued)
discounted cash flow analysis. If the fair value of the reporting unit exceeds its carrying amount, step two does not need to be performed.
The Company will perform its annual impairment review of indefinite-lived intangible assets as at March 1 of every fiscal year or when a triggering
event occurs between annual impairment dates. An impairment analysis was performed as of March 1, 2017 and no impairment or triggering events
were noted. As at November 30, 2017 no impairment or triggering events were noted.
Other intangible assets, excluding goodwill
Intangible assets, excluding goodwill, consist of definite-lived and indefinite-lived intangible assets. On recognition of an intangible asset, the
Company makes a determination as to whether it is indefinite or definite- lived, taking into consideration the expected use of the asset, expiry of
agreements, nature of the asset and whether the asset value decreases over time. The Company’s indefinite-lived intangible assets consist of the
DBRS trade name in Canada, the United States and Europe (trademark) and definite-lived intangibles assets consist of customer relationships,
technology and computer software obtained for internal use.
Indefinite-lived intangible assets are not amortized, are reported at cost less accumulated impairment losses and are tested for impairment at least
annually.
The Company will perform its annual impairment review of indefinite-lived intangible assets as at March 1 of every fiscal year or when a triggering
event occurs between annual impairment dates. An impairment analysis was performed as of March 1, 2017 and no impairment or triggering events
were noted. As at November 30, 2017 no impairment or triggering events were noted.
Definite-lived intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and any recognized impairment. Definite-lived intangible assets are
amortized on a straight-line basis over their following useful lives:
Customer relationships
Technology
Computer software obtained for internal use

4 - 13 years
6 years
3-5 years

Computer software developed or obtained for internal use
The Company capitalizes costs related to software developed or obtained for internal use. These assets, included in intangibles and goodwill in the
balance sheets, relate to the Company’s systems. Such costs generally consist of direct costs of employee compensation, in each case incurred
either during the application development stage or in connection with upgrades and enhancements that increase functionality. Such costs are
amortized over their estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. Costs incurred during the preliminary project stage of development as well as
maintenance costs are expensed as incurred. Capitalization of costs begin when the preliminary project stage is completed and management
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Computer software developed or obtained for internal use (continued)
authorizes and commits to funding a computer software project and it is probable that the project will be completed and the software will be used to
perform the function intended.
Impairment of long-lived assets
Long-lived assets, such as property and equipment, investments held at cost and definite-lived intangible assets, are tested for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable (triggering event). If it is determined
a triggering event has occurred, an undiscounted cash flow analysis is completed on the affected asset group to determine whether the future
expected undiscounted cash flows of an asset group are sufficient to recover the carrying value of the assets. If it is determined that the
undiscounted cash flows are insufficient, then the asset group is deemed to be impaired. The fair value of the long-lived assets is estimated primarily
using third party appraisals or discounted cash flows, as appropriate. If the fair value of the asset group is less than the carrying amount, an
impairment loss is recognized for the difference between the carrying amount and the fair value of the asset group.
Income taxes
The Company uses the asset and liability method whereby income taxes reflect the expected future tax consequences of temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for accounting purposes as compared to tax purposes. A deferred income tax asset or liability
is determined for each temporary difference based on the currently enacted tax rates that are expected to be in effect when the underlying items of
income and expense are expected to be realized, except for a portion of earnings related to foreign operations where repatriation is not
contemplated in the foreseeable future. Income taxes reported in the consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive loss include the
current and deferred portions of the expense. Income taxes applicable to items charged or credited to equity are netted with such items. Changes in
deferred income taxes related to a change in tax rates are recognized in the period when the tax rate change is enacted. In addition, the
consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive loss contains items that are non-taxable or non-deductible for income tax purposes and,
accordingly, may cause the income tax provision to be different from what it would be if based on statutory rates. When considered necessary, the
Company records a valuation allowance to reduce deferred tax assets to the balance that is more likely than not to be realized. To determine the
valuation allowance, the Company must make estimates and judgments on future taxable income, considering feasible tax planning strategies and
taking into account existing facts and circumstances. When the Company determines that the net amount of deferred tax assets could be realized in
greater or lesser amounts than recognized, the asset balance and income tax expense reflect the change in the period such determination is made.
Due to changes in facts and circumstances and the estimates and judgments that are involved in determining the valuation allowance, future events
could result in adjustments to this valuation allowance.
A tax benefit from an uncertain tax position may be recognized in the consolidated financial statements only if it is more likely than not that the
position will be sustained on examination by taxing authorities, based on the technical merits of the position. The tax benefits recognized in the
consolidated financial statements from such a position are measured based on the largest benefit that has a greater than 50% likelihood of being
realized on ultimate settlement. Changes in judgment that result in subsequent recognition, de-recognition or a change in measurement of a tax
position taken in a
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Income taxes (continued)
prior period (including any related interest and penalties) are recognized as a discrete item in the period in which the change occurs. The Company
classifies interest related to unrecognized tax benefits in interest expense in its consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive loss.
Penalties, if incurred, would be recognized in in income taxes in the consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive loss. The Company
classifies a liability associated with an unrecognized tax benefit as a long-term liability, except for liabilities that are expected to be settled within the
next 12 months.
The determination of income tax expense takes into consideration amounts that may be needed to cover exposure for open tax years. The number
of tax years that remain open and subject to tax audits varies depending on the tax jurisdiction. A number of years may elapse before an uncertain
tax position, for which the Company has unrecognized tax benefits, is audited and resolved. While it is often difficult to predict the final outcome or
the timing or resolution of any particular uncertain tax position, the Company believes that its unrecognized tax benefits reflect management’s
current estimate of the expected outcomes. Unrecognized tax benefits are adjusted, as well as the related interest and penalties, in light of
subsequent changes in facts and circumstances. Settlement of any particular uncertain tax position may require the use of cash. In addition, the
resolution of a matter may result in an adjustment to the provision for income taxes, which may impact the effective tax rate in the period of
resolution.
Deferred lease inducement and rent expense
The Company records rent expense on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease. In cases where there is a free rent period or future fixed rent
escalations the Company will record these items rateably over the term of the lease. Additionally, the receipt of any lease incentives will be recorded
as a deferred lease inducement which will be amortized over the lease term as a reduction of rent expense.
Share-based compensation
Ratings maintains several incentive plans under which non-qualified share options, incentive units and restricted stock units (RSUs) may be granted
to employees, non-employee directors and management. The Company recognizes shared-based compensation costs for awards granted by the
parent to employees of the Company and its subsidiaries. No consideration is provided for the awards and as such is considered a capital
contribution. The Company recognizes share-based compensation expense based on the grant date estimated fair value of each award using an
estimated expected life, net of estimated forfeitures, over the employee’s requisite service period. For share-based compensation with a service and
a performance condition, share-based compensation cost is recognized on a straight-line basis over the vesting periods when it is probable the
performance condition will be met.
Pension obligations
The Company operates a defined contribution pension plan. The Company provides no other post-retirement benefits to its employees, including
directors. The defined contribution pension plan is privately administrated and the Company pays contributions on a contractual basis. The
contributions are recognized as a staff cost as they fall due.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Derivative instruments
The Company recognizes and measures all derivatives as either assets or liabilities at fair value in the consolidated statement of financial position.
The Company has a policy prohibiting speculative trading in derivatives. The Company may enter into derivatives that are not initially designated as
hedging instruments for accounting purposes, but which largely offset the economic impact of certain transactions. Gains or losses resulting from
changes in the fair value of derivatives are recorded in the consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive loss.
The Company limits its counterparty risk associated with derivative instruments by generally entering into international swaps and derivatives
association agreements with its financial institution. The Company continually monitors its positions, and the credit ratings of its counterparties, and
adjusts positions if appropriate.
Fair value measurements
·

Fair value hierarchy
Certain assets and liabilities are not measured at fair value on an ongoing basis but are subject to fair value adjustment in certain
circumstances. These items primarily include: (a) assets acquired and liabilities assumed initially measured at fair value in connection with the
application of acquisition accounting; (b) long-lived assets, reporting units with goodwill and intangible assets for which fair value is determined
as part of the related impairment tests; and (c) other assets and liabilities included on the balance sheet.
Fair value is defined as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants in the principal market, or if none exists, the most advantageous market, for the specific asset or liability at the
measurement date (the exit price). Valuation techniques used by the Company to measure fair value maximize the use of observable inputs
and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. The fair value should be based on assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability. The measurement of fair value is based on three levels of inputs, as follows:

·

Level 1 - quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company has the ability to access at the
measurement date;

·

Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. Level 2
inputs include: quoted market prices for similar assets or liabilities; quoted prices in markets that are not active; or, other inputs that are
observable or can be corroborated by observable market date of substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities; and

·

Level 3 - unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are significant to the fair value of the assets or liabilities.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Fair value measurements (continued)
Assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value are categorized in one of the three levels on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant
to its valuation.
·

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities
The Company’s financial instruments include cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, accounts receivable, investments, certain other
assets, accounts payable and accrued liabilities, and long-term debt.
Certain derivatives are valued using various pricing models or discounted cash flow analyses that incorporate observable market parameters,
such as interest rate yield curves and currency rates, classified as Level 2 within the valuation hierarchy. Derivative valuations incorporate credit
risk adjustments that are necessary to reflect the probability of default by the counterparty or the Company.
The carrying amounts for cash and equivalents, accounts receivable and accounts payable and accrued liabilities approximate fair value based
on the short-term nature of these accounts.
The fair value of the investments is not readily determinable as these are investments in private entities classified as Level 3 inputs within the
fair value hierarchy.
The fair value of the Company’s long-term debt is measured using quoted offer-side prices when quoted market prices are available. If quoted
market prices are not available, the fair value is determined by discounting the future cash flows of each instrument at rates that reflect rates
currently observed in publicly traded debt markets for debt of similar terms to companies with comparable credit risk. For long-term debt
measurements, where the rates are not currently observable in publicly traded debt markets of similar terms to companies with comparable
credit, the Company uses market interest rates and adjusts that rate for all necessary risks, including its own credit risk. In determining an
appropriate spread to reflect its credit standing, the Company considers credit default swap spreads, bond yields of other long-term debt offered
by the Company, and interest rates currently offered to the Company for similar debt instruments of comparable maturities by the Company’s
bankers as well as other banks that regularly compete to provide financing to the Company. Fair values of variable rate term debt are classified
as Level 2 inputs within the fair value hierarchy.
Contingencies
The Company evaluates the need for loss accruals under the requirements of Topic 450 of the FASB ASC – Contingencies. Certain conditions
may exist which may result in a loss to the Company, but which will only be resolved when one or more future events occur or fail to occur. The
Company’s management and its legal counsel assess such contingent liabilities, and such assessment inherently involves an exercise of
judgment. In assessing loss
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Contingencies (continued)
contingencies related to legal proceedings that are pending against the Company, or unasserted claims that may result in such proceedings, the
Company’s legal counsel evaluates the perceived merits of any legal proceedings or unasserted claims as well as the perceived merits of the
amount of relief sought or expected to be sought therein. If the assessment of a contingency indicates that it is probable that a material loss has
been incurred and the amount of the liability can be estimated, the estimated liability would be accrued in the Company’s financial statements. If
the assessment indicates that a potentially material loss contingency is not probable but is reasonably possible, or is probable but cannot be
estimated, the nature of the contingent liability, together with an estimate of the range of possible loss if determinable and material, would be
disclosed. Loss contingencies considered remote are generally not disclosed unless they arise from guarantees, in which case the guarantees
would be disclosed. Contingencies are disclosed in Note 17.
Employee incentive plans
The Company has a certain cash settled long-term incentive plan for certain eligible employees recorded as a liability in the consolidated
statement of financial position. Employee incentive plans are recognized as a compensation cost over the vesting period as defined by the
incentive plans. Adjustments are made to the long-term incentive amount based on the fair value calculated at each measurement date,
resulting in the measure of compensation recorded as salary and benefits in the consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive
income (loss).
Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognized when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, the services have been provided and accepted by the client, fees
are determinable and the collection of resulting receivables is considered probable.
Revenue attributed to initial ratings of securities is recognized when the rating is issued. Revenue attributed to new issuer fees are recognized
upon execution of the engagement letter. Maintenance/ surveillance revenue attributed to monitoring of issuers or issued securities is
recognized over the period in which the monitoring is performed. Revenue from the sale of research products and from credit risk management
subscriptions is recognized over the related subscription period.
Pursuant to the guidance in ASC 605-25, “Multiple-Element Arrangements” (“ASC 605-25”), when a sales arrangement contains multiple
deliverables, the Company allocates revenue to each deliverable based on its
relative selling price which is determined based on its vendor specific objective evidence (“VSOE”) if available, third party evidence (“TPE”) if
VSOE of selling price is not available, or estimated selling price (“ESP”) if neither VSOE nor TPE is available.
The Company’s products and services qualify as separate units of accounting under ASC 605-25. The Company evaluates each deliverable in
an arrangement to determine whether it represents a separate unit of accounting. A deliverable constitutes a separate unit of accounting when it
has stand-alone value to the customers and if the arrangement includes a customer refund or returns right relative to the delivered item, and the
delivery and
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)
performance of the undelivered item is considered probable and substantially in the Company’s control. In instances where the aforementioned
criteria are not met, the deliverable is combined with the undelivered items and revenue recognition is determined as one single unit.
Amounts billed in advance such as for maintenance/ surveillance and subscription services, are reflected on the balance sheet as deferred
revenue and classified as current when they are expected to be recognized within one year of the balance sheet date. Fees that are not
expected to be recognized within one year are classified as long-term. Volume based fees for ratings for single purpose vehicles that issue
Commercial Papers are calculated as a percentage of the outstanding security, and billed quarterly or annually in arrears. Furthermore, for
certain annual monitoring services, fees are not invoiced until the end of the annual monitoring period. Revenue is accrued over the monitoring
period.
Newly released accounting standards not yet adopted
In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standard Board issued ASU No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606) ("ASU
2014-09"), which supersedes the revenue recognition requirements in ASC 605, Revenue Recognition. ASU 2014-09 requires entities to
recognize revenue in a way that depicts the transfer of goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
entity expects to be entitled to in exchange for those goods or services. ASU 2014-09 requires additional disclosure about the nature, amount,
timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from customer contracts, including significant judgments and changes in judgments
and assets recognized from costs incurred to obtain or fulfil a contract. ASU 2014-09 is effective retrospectively for fiscal years, and interim
periods within those years, beginning after December 15, 2018. The Company is currently evaluating the effect that this pronouncement will
have on its financial statements and related disclosures.
In November 2015, the Financial Accounting Standard Board issued a new leasing standard where non-public companies will be required to
apply for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2020. For nonpublic calendar year-end companies, this means an adoption date of January 1, 2020 and retrospective application to previously issued annual
financial statements for 2019 and 2018. The Company is currently evaluating the effect that this pronouncement will have on its financial
statements and related disclosures.
On January 26, 2017, the Financial Accounting Standard Board issued guidance to simplify the accounting for goodwill impairment. The
guidance removes Step 2 of the goodwill impairment test, which requires a hypothetical purchase price allocation. A goodwill impairment will
now be the amount by which a reporting unit’s carrying value exceeds its fair value, not to exceed the carrying amount of goodwill. The revised
guidance will be applied prospectively, and is effective for calendar year-end SEC filers in 2020. Other public business entities will have an
additional year. All other entities that have not elected the private Company goodwill alternative are required to adopt in 2022.
10

Ratings Acquisition Corp
(operating as DBRS Group)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars, unless otherwise indicated)
November 30, 2017
2

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Newly released accounting standards not yet adopted (continued)
In January 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-01, which eliminates the requirement to disclose the fair value of financial instruments measured
at amortized cost for entities that are not public business entities, requires an entity to present separately in other comprehensive income the
portion of the total change in the fair value of a liability resulting from a change in the instrument-specific credit risk when the entity has elected
to measure the liability at fair value in accordance with the fair value option for financial instruments and requires separate presentation of
financial assets and financial liabilities by measurement category and form of financial asset on the balance sheet or the accompanying notes to
the financial statements. The amendments are effective for non-public entities are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018,
and for interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019. All entities that are not public business entities may adopt the
amendments in this update earlier as of the fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2017, including interim periods within those fiscal years.
No other early adoption is permitted. The Company is currently assessing the impact the adoption of this standard will have on the Company’s
financial position and its related disclosures.
In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-15, which affects all entities that are required to present a statement of cash flows under Topic 230.
This update addresses eight specific cash flow issues with the objective of reducing the existing diversity in practice. For non-public entities, the
amendments are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December
15, 2019. The amendments in this update should be applied using a retrospective transition method to each period presented. Early adoption is
permitted, including adoption in an interim period. The Company is currently assessing the impact the adoption of this standard will have on the
Company’s disclosures.
In August 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-15, which provides guidance in GAAP about management’s responsibility to evaluate whether
there is substantial doubt about an entity’s ability to continue as a going concern and to provide related footnote disclosures. This standard is
effective for all entities for fiscal years and interim periods within those years, beginning after December 15, 2016. Early application is permitted.
The Company is currently assessing the impact the adoption of this standard will have on the Company’s results of operations, financial
position, and its related disclosures.
In November 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-17, which simplifies the presentation of deferred income taxes, the amendments in this update
require that deferred income tax liabilities and assets be classified as noncurrent in a classified statement of financial position. For non-public
entities, the amendments in this Update are effective for financial statements issued for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2017, and
interim periods within annual periods beginning after December 15, 2018.
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Accounts receivable - net
Accounts receivable as at November 30, 2017 consist of the following balances:
As at November 30, As at November 30,
2017
2016
Trade receivables
Other receivables
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts

$

32,376 $
142
(50)
32,468 $

$
4

28,861
940
(34)
29,767

Property and equipment - net
Property and equipment, net as at November 30, 2017 consists of the following:

Cost
Computer equipment
Office equipment
Telephone system
Leasehold improvements

$

$

1,746
1,756
856
9,596
13,954

November 30,
2017 Net Book
Value

Accumulated
Amortization
$

$

1,270
549
439
2,671
4,929

$

$

476
1,207
417
6,925
9,025

November 30,
2016 Net Book
Value
$

$

655
737
462
5,863
7,717

Amortization expense on property and equipment of $2,176 for the period (2016 - $2,192) was recorded in amortization expense in the consolidated
statement of operations and comprehensive income (loss). Amortization is recognized on a straight line basis over the life of the asset.
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Intangible assets - net including goodwill
Intangible assets as at November 30, 2017 consist of the following:
Accumulated
Amortization

Cost
Definite-lived intangible assets:
Customer relationships
Technology
Computer software obtained for internal use
Indefinite-lived intangible assets:
Trademarks
Goodwill

$

$

276,308
25,150
6,346
99,682
298,322
705,808

$

69,326
11,527
2,151

November 30,
2017 Net Book
Value

November 30,
2016 Net Book
Value

$

$

206,982
13,623
4,195

$

83,004

99,682
298,322
622,804

$

$

Weighted
average life

233,769
18,001
2,705

8.5
6
3-5

101,930
303,399
659,804

Amortization expense on definite-lived intangible assets of $30,587 for the period (2016 - $29,778) was recorded in amortization expense in the
consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive income (loss). Amortization is recognized on a straight line basis over the life of the asset.
The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill in total are summarized as follows:
Balance- November 30, 2016
Foreign Exchange
Balance- November 30, 2017

$
$

303,399
(5,077)
298,322

Amortization of the intangible assets are as follows:
Year ending November 30,
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
Thereafter

$

$

30,717
29,497
29,267
27,816
24,453
83,051
224,801
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Long-term debt
Long-term debt as at November 30, 2017 consists of the following:
Secured term loan facility
Less: Debt issuance costs

$

Less: Current portion
$

2017
282,304 $
1,981
280,323
2,902
277,421 $

2016
297,107
6,200
290,907
3,022
287,885

On March 4, 2015, DBRS Canada and DBRS US, as co-borrowers entered into a credit agreement with Credit Suisse AG (credit agreement), which
provides for a term loan with a principal amount of US$225 million under a secured term loan facility (term loan) and a revolver facility (revolver) of
up to US$40 million. The US$225 million term loan has been allocated US$125 million to DBRS Canada and US$100 million to DBRS US,
respectively.
The term loan matures on March 4, 2022 where the principal amounts amortize in quarterly instalments, with the balance due at the maturity date.
Interest accrues at a rate of LIBOR plus 5.25% per annum on the term loan. Early prepayments can be made on the term loan at no penalty,
provided the payments are made after the 12-month anniversary of the closing date of the credit agreement. Interest expense of $18.5 million (2016
- $22.5 million) was recorded related to the term loan for the period.
The revolver matures on March 4, 2020 and accrues interest at a rate of LIBOR plus 4.50% or 5.00% annually, depending on certain leverage
ratios. Interest expense of $150 thousand (2016 - $1 million) was recorded related to the revolver for period.
Also included in the credit agreement is a swing-line facility of US$10 million, which was not utilized at November 30, 2017. The fair value of longterm debt as at November 30, 2017 approximates its book value.
Covenants
The credit agreement contains a number of affirmative and negative covenants that, among other things, limit or restrict the ability to incur additional
indebtedness and liens, sell assets, fundamentally change business models, acquire other companies, or make certain investments. The credit
agreement requires the maintenance of one financial ratio.
Senior secured first lien net leverage ratio means, as of any date of determination, the ratio, on a pro forma basis, of: (i) consolidated senior secured
first lien indebtedness as of such date to; (ii) consolidated earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) for the most
recently completed test period.
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Long-term debt (continued)
If the sum of the aggregate principal amount of the revolver outstanding at the end of the period plus the aggregate principal amount of swing-line
loans then outstanding exceeds 30.0% of the aggregate principal amount of revolving commitment then the senior secured first lien net leverage
ratio is not permitted to exceed 7.25:1 until May 31, 2016 and 7.00:1 thereafter. As at November 30, 2017, the Company was in compliance with all
covenants of the credit agreement.
Deferred financing costs
In connection with the credit agreement, the Company incurred US$10.6 million of deferred financing costs that was recorded as a direct reduction
against the term loan and is being amortized over the term of the loan into interest expense using the interest rate method. The amortization of
deferred financing costs included in interest expense was $3.8 million for the period ending November 30, 2017 (2016 - $4.0 million).
Maturities
The aggregate maturities of long-term debt as at November 30, 2017 are as follows:

2018
2019
2020
2021
2022

$

Less deferred financing fees
$

2,902
5,078
5,804
5,804
262,716
282,304
(1,981)
280,323
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Income taxes
The tax-effected temporary differences, which gave rise to deferred tax assets and liabilities as at November 30, 2017, consisted of the following:
Deferred tax assets
Current:
Temporary differences related to:
Lease abandonment costs
Net operating loss carry forwards
Ontario minimum tax
Deferred lease inducement and deferred revenue
Accelerated capital allowances
Employee Incentive Plans
Other

2017
$

$
Long term:
Temporary differences related to:
Tax depreciation in excess of accounting depreciation on
property and equipment
Net operating loss carry forwards
Finance costs
Net capital losses
Deferred lease inducement and deferred revenue

$

AMT Credit Carryforwards
$
Deferred tax liabilities
Current:
Temporary differences related to:
Employee incentive plans
Accrued interest

$

Net Deferred Tax Liability

253
100
102
455

$

153
3,132
768
120

$

5,078
219
9,470

$

$

184
2,229
613
2
7
53
62
3,150

432
5,253
593
4,024
10,302

-

$

$

$

458
91,447
339
1,385
562
11
94,202

$

300
100,954
437
1,421
607
13
103,732

$

84,277

$

91,223

$
Long term:
Temporary differences related to:
Tax depreciation in excess of accounting depreciation on
property and equipment
Intangible assets
Unrealized gain on swap
Tax reserve
Unrealized loss
Other

2016

$

$

934
9
943
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Income taxes (continued)
Income tax expense for the period comprises the following:

Current tax provision:
DBRS Canada
DBRS US
$
Deferred tax provision:
DBRS Canada
DBRS US
DBRS UK
AAA UK Acquisition Co. Limited
$

2017
$

2016
$

7,046
326
7,372

3,227
114
3,341

$

(5,243)
(212)
(164)
(33)
(5,652) $

(3,124)
(12,344)
956
(14,512)

DBRS UK had trade loss carry-forwards of £8,133 as at November 30, 2017 (2016 - £10,250). These losses are not subject to expiry.
As at November 30, 2017, the Company had $2,672 (2016 - $2,780) of uncertain tax positions (UTPs). The Company classifies interest related to
UTPs in interest expense in its consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive loss. Penalties, if incurred, would be recognized in other
non-operating expenses. During the period to November 30, 2017, the amount of net interest accrued for UTPs was $92 (2016 - $152). As at
November 30, 2017, the amount of accrued interest recorded in the Company’s consolidated statement of financial position related to UTPs was
$358 (2016 - $266).
A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of UTPs is as follows:

Balance - Beginning of period
Interest accrued
Foreign exchange
Balance - End of period

$

2017
$

2016
$

2,780
92
(200)
2,672 $

2,628
152
2,780
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Income taxes (continued)
The Company’s subsidiaries are subject to Canadian income tax, US federal and state income tax as well as income tax in the United Kingdom. Tax
filings in Canada and the US since 2011 remain open to examination. Tax filings in the UK since 2012 remain open to examination.
It is also possible that new issues might be raised by tax authorities which might necessitate increases to the balance of UTPs. As the Company is
unable to predict the timing or conclusion of these audits, the Company is unable to estimate the amount of changes to the balance of UTPs at this
time. However, the Company believes it has adequately provided for its financial exposure for all open tax years by tax jurisdiction.
A reconciliation of the statutory tax rate to the Company’s effective tax rate on income before provision for income taxes is as follows:
For the period from
December 1, 2016 to
November 30, 2017

8

For the period from
December 1, 2015 to
November 30, 2016

Statutory Rate

19.33%

20.00%

Difference between local and foreign tax rates
Non deductible expenses
Change in tax rate
Timing differences with respect to losses
Current tax true up
Deferred tax true up
Non taxable portion of gains and losses
Non qualifying depreciation
Unrecorded temporary differences
Other

7.46%
4.96%
10.44%
(1.44%)
(5.81%)
(2.13%)
(8.42%)
3.33%
27.71%

16.42%
(1.60%)
6.17%
(9.40%)
(0.32%)
(0.01%)
(0.17%)
2.03%
(0.17%)
(1.38%)
31.57%

Employee incentive plan
2017
Bonus payable (short term incentive plan)
Long term incentive plan

$
$

27,513 $
724
28,237 $

2016
18,074
809
18,883
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Employee incentive plan (continued)
Effective December 1, 2013, the predecessor Company, DBRS Holdings Limited, established a cash settled long-term incentive plan (the 2014
LTIP) for eligible employees of DBRS Canada, DBRS US and DBRS UK, subsidiaries of the Company. The 2014 LTIP awards were granted in early
2014 and vest evenly over a three-year term. $724 were accrued as of November 30, 2017 (2016 - $809) and were paid in January 2018. The
Company records a liability as the awards vest, no further awards will be granted under the 2014 LTIP.

9

Other liabilities
Other liabilities consists of the following balances:
Current:

2017

2016

Lease abandonment payable
Deferred lease inducement
$

1,584
1,584

$

478
647
1,125

$

1,471
1,471

$

2,005
2,005

Long Term:
Deferred lease inducement

10

Capital stock and mezzanine equity
Authorized
Unlimited common shares
Unlimited Class A preferred shares
Issued
2017
Shares
Balance - Beginning of period
Shares issued
Return of capital
Balance - End of period

24,950,210
24,950,210

$

Amount($)
197,972
197,972

2016
Shares
20,633,508
4,316,702
24,950,210

$

Amount($)
206,335
34,251
(42,614)
197,972
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Capital Stock and Mezzanine Equity (continued)
Holders of common shares are entitled to one vote per share, and to receive dividends and, on liquidation or dissolution, are entitled to receive all
assets available for distribution to shareholders. The holders have no pre-emptive or other subscription rights and there are no redemption or sinking
fund provisions with respect to such shares. Common shares are subordinate to the Class A preferred shares below with respect to dividend rights
and rights on liquidation, winding up and dissolution of the Company.
Class A preferred shares
2017
Shares
Balance - Beginning of period
Shares redeemed
Balance - End of period

91,038,876
(5,259,988)
85,778,888

$

Amount $
91,039
(5,260)
85,779

2016
Shares
100,000,000
(8,961,124)
91,038,876

$

Amount $
100,000
(8,961)
91,039

In connection with the transactions, 100,000,000 Class A cumulative compounding perpetual voting preferred shares were issued at a total
purchase price of $100 million or $1.00 per share (the Purchase Price). No issuance costs were incurred.
The Class A preferred shares will accrue an annual dividend of 6.0% until March 4, 2022, at which point the dividend will increase by 100 basis
points to a maximum of 8.0% as at March 4, 2024. The dividend is only payable upon approval by the Board, or when a liquidity event occurs. The
annual dividend will accrue on a daily basis on the sum of the value of the shares plus all accrued dividends, whether or not there are funds legally
available for the payment of dividends. All accrued dividends accumulate and compound on a quarterly basis.
All outstanding Class A preferred shares are mandatorily redeemable in the event of liquidity or the option of the Company in whole or in part subject
to certain restrictions. Liquidity events are events that result in significant changes to the ownership of the Company. During the year ended
November 30, 2016 the Company agreed to redeem an agreed amount of Class A preferred shares based on a pre-set schedule, assuming the
Company meets certain criteria at each repayment date. The agreement continues indefinitely, and is subject to certain restrictions, including
ensuring the redemption does not cause a violation of any debt covenants. Assuming the Company in compliance with all covenants, the Company
would be required to pay approx. 6% of the face value of the preferred shares per year.
Holders of the Class A preferred shares have voting rights equal to 10.1% of the issued voting share capital of the Company. Except as otherwise
provided holders of the preferred shares and common shares vote together as a single class.
The Class A preferred shares are presented outside of permanent equity and are measured at their redemption amount. The liquidation value is
$100 million.
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Treasury shares
Treasury shares of 803,303 shares were repurchased at a premium in 2017 (2016: nil) and of those, 600,000 were reissued for a net cash outlay of
$571.

12

Share-based compensation
Ratings Acquisition Corp. 2015 Stock Option and Restricted Stock Unit Plan
On March 4, 2015, and restated as at March 31, 2015, the Board of Directors approved the Ratings Acquisition Corp. 2015 Stock Option and
Restricted Stock Unit Plan (2015 plan) granted to certain employees and directors of the Company.
As part of the 2015 plan, there were 708,943 options authorized and granted as of November 30, 2017, whereas each option can be exercised,
once vested, for one common share. The exercise price is equal to the fair value of a common share on the grant date and the term of the options
shall commence on the grant date and expire on the tenth anniversary thereof, unless the options shall have been earlier terminated in accordance
with the terms of the 2015 plan.
Options granted include a service component as well as a performance component. The service component vests in five equal instalments annually
on each of the first five anniversaries of the grant date. The performance component vests pursuant to the achievement of certain performance
conditions and is expensed based on a graded vesting schedule if performance conditions are met. The performance condition would mean any
event such as a change of control or an Initial Public Offering. The Company reassesses the probability of vesting at each reporting period for
awards with performance conditions and adjusts compensation cost based on its probability assessment.
During the operating year, 88,000 additional options were granted and 3,333 options were forfeited. No options were exercised during the period. As
at November 30, 2017 there were 708,943 options outstanding.
The following table summarizes the options outstanding under the 2017 plan:
Number of options
Oustanding- Beginning of period
Granted
Vested and settled
Forefeited
Outstanding- End of period

624,276
88,000
(3,333)
708,943

Weigted average
exercise price $
7.93
9.08
7.93
8.07
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Share-based compensation (continued)
The following table summarizes the RSUs outstanding under the 2016 plan:
Number of options
Oustanding- Beginning of period
Granted
Vested and settled
Forefeited
RSU's- End of period

310,238
310,238

Weigted average
exercise price $
9.67
9.67

Ratings Acquisition Corp. 2015 Incentive Share Plan
On March 4, 2015, and restated as at March 31, 2015, the Board of Directors approved the 2015 Incentive Share Plan (2015 Incentive Plan) granted
to certain employees of the Company.
As part of the 2015 Incentive Plan, there were 1,842,981 Class A incentive shares authorized to be granted.
The Class A incentive shares granted include a service component as well as a performance component. The service component vests in five equal
instalments annually on each of the first five anniversaries of the grant date. The performance component vests pursuant to the achievement of
certain performance conditions and is expensed based on a graded vesting schedule if performance conditions are met. The performance condition
would mean any event such as a change of control or an Initial Public Offering. The Company reassesses the probability of vesting at each reporting
period for awards with performance conditions and adjusts compensation cost based on its probability assessment.
The Company granted an additional 230,441 Class A incentive shares during the period. During the period 718,047 shares were forfeited and none
have vested or settled. At November 30, 2017 1,842,981 Class A incentive shares were outstanding.
The Company recorded stock-based compensation expense of $nil for the period of December 1, 2016 to November 30, 2017 ($nil for the period of
December 1, 2015 to November 30, 2016) since the performance event is not probable. The compensation cost will only be recorded if a liquidity
event is deemed probable.
13

Financial instruments
Cross currency interest rate swap
The Company entered into a cross currency interest rate swap with Credit Suisse International to manage its exposure related to changes in interest
rates on $198 million of variable rate debt instruments most particularly the US$225 million variable rate LIBOR debt entered into to finance the
Transaction (note 6). The cross-currency interest rate swap had a notional amount totalling US$158 million and matures on February 2020. The fair
value of the interest rate swap as
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Financial instruments (continued)
Cross currency interest rate swap (continued)
at November 30, 2017 is an asset of $2,962 (2016 - $8,000) and is recorded in other assets in the consolidated statement of financial position. The
fair value of the interest rate agreement was calculated using a net present value of future discounted cash flows using the following significant
inputs: the term of the swap, the notional amount of the swap, discount rates interpolated based on relevant swap curves, the rate on the fixed leg of
the swap and a Level 2 input.
By effectively converting the interest rates from variable to fixed, the Company has eliminated the volatility.
Credit risk
The Company is exposed to credit risk resulting from the possibility counterparties may default on their financial obligations. Financial instruments
that potentially subject the Company to credit risk principally consist of cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, accounts receivable and
derivative instruments. The Company manages its credit risk exposure on cash and cash equivalents by allocating its cash equivalents among
various high grade term deposits and money market mutual funds. Credit risk on accounts receivable is managed through credit management
procedures in place to ensure clients are creditworthy and to mitigate the risk to any one party and to the aggregate balance. Management does not
estimate the Company has any significant credit risk with respect to any single client. Credit risk is the failure of the counterparty to perform under
the terms of the derivative contract. When the fair value of a derivative contract is positive, the counterparty owes the Company, which creates credit
risk for the Company. When the fair value of a derivative contract is negative, the Company owes the counterparty and, therefore, the Company is
not exposed to the counterparty’s credit risk in those circumstances. The Company minimizes counterparty credit risk in derivative instruments by
entering into transactions with high quality counterparties. The derivative instruments entered into by the Company do not contain credit risk related
contingent features.

14

Comprehensive income
Comprehensive income includes all changes in equity during the period, except those resulting from transactions with shareholders. Comprehensive
income is comprised of net income and other comprehensive income. Accumulated other comprehensive income reported on the consolidated
statement of financial position consists of foreign currency translation adjustments.
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Commitments
The minimum lease payments under operating leases are as follows:
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
Thereafter

$

5,845
5,805
5,861
5,618
4,518
32,363
60,010

$

The Company, in support of the lease commitments, had issued letters of credit in the amount of $2.0 million at November 30, 2016, which expired July
31, 2017, as security deposits on the leased office spaces. There are no letters of credit outstanding as at November 30, 2017.
16

Supplemental cash flow information
2017
Income taxes paid - DBRS Canada
Income taxes paid - DBRS US
Interest paid on debt - DBRS Canada
Interest paid on debt - DBRS US

$

$
17

5,173 $
410
10,250
10,038
25,871 $

2016
820
12,828
10,739
24,387

Contingencies
DBRS Group is not involved in any legal proceedings which are expected to have a material effect on its business, financial position, results of
operations or liquidity, nor is DBRS Group aware of any proceedings that are pending or threatened which may have a material effect on the
business, financial position, and results of operations or liquidity.

18

Subsequent events
We have considered all subsequent events through April 13, 2018 the date the financial statements were available for issuance.
On December 13, 2017, DBRS Limited sold its 16% stake in ICR for $921,384 (US$720,000). A gain on sale was recorded in 2018.
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Subsequent events (continued)
On December 22, 2017 the United States Tax Reform bill was enacted, with certain provisions effective January 1, 2018. Management is currently
assessing the impact of this enacted bill on its financial statements for the fiscal year ending November 30, 2018.
On January 24, 2018, AAA UK Acquisition Co. Limited incorporated an entity in Germany named DBRS Ratings GmbH.

19

Changes to prior year comparatives
Prior year comparatives have been restated to conform to the current year presentation. The only changes are the inclusion of additional subcategories of disclosure as management are of the view that this further detail will provide greater clarity to the users of the financial statements. The
following financial statement lines were impacted:
Balance Sheet
·
·

Property, plant, and equipment
Intangible assets

Statement of Cash Flows
·
·
·

Amortization of deferred financing fees
Purchase of property, plant, and equipment
Purchase of intangible assets
25
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Interim Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet
(expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars, unless otherwise indicated)
As at February 28, 2019
Notes
Assets
Current
Cash
Accounts receivable, net
Prepaid expenses
Income tax receivable
Current deferred tax asset
Current portion of assets of discontinued operations

Investments
Property and equipment, net
Other assets
Intangible assets
Goodwill
Swap receivable

February 28, 2019

$
3

14

4
4
10
$

Liabilities
Current
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Employee incentive plans
Current portion deferred revenue
Current portion of long-term debt
Other
Current portion of liabilities of discontinued operations

Deferred revenue
Long-term debt
Deferred tax liabilities
Unrecognized tax benefits
Asset retirement obligation
Other

Mezzanine equity
Class A preferred shares
Shareholders' Equity
Share capital
Treasury shares
Dividends paid
Contributed surplus
Deficit
Accumulated other comprehensive income

$
5
14

45,504
28,321
5,215
3,019
133
34
82,226
705
14,137
216
290,632
301,100
4,175
693,191

7,416
3,136
41,331
5,930
596
2
58,411

November 30, 2018

$

$

$

56,842
35,782
4,521
1,662
1,870
35
100,712
683
14,687
217
297,862
302,038
7,082
723,281

7,657
26,496
37,607
5,234
954
87
78,035

22,951
279,298
66,235
3,992
328
3,819
435,034

22,778
283,801
69,214
4,027
313
3,182
461,350

7

79,616

80,820

7
8

197,972
(2,537)
(2,682)
1,122
(18,755)
3,421
178,541

197,972
(2,537)
(2,373)
1,122
(17,754)
4,681
181,111

5
6
6

$
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these interim condensed consolidated financial statements.

693,191

$

723,281
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For the period ended February 28, 2019

Three months ended
February 28, 2019

Notes
Revenue
Fees

$

Expenses
Salaries and benefits
Employee incentive plans
General and administrative
Rent and operating
Amortization and depreciation
Provision (recovery) for allowance for doubtful accounts
Operating income from continuing operations
Other expenses (income)
Interest
Foreign exchange gain (loss)
Transaction and other
(Loss) income from continuing operations before income taxes
Income taxes (recovery)
Current
Deferred
Net (loss) income from continuing operations
Net loss from discontinued operations
Net (loss) income
Other comprehensive (loss) income
Currency translation adjustment
Comprehensive income

6
6
14

$

51,060
51,060

Three months ended
February 28, 2018
$

48,477
48,477

25,272
3,035
8,405
2,177
8,430
29
47,348
3,712

21,507
4,512
6,629
1,998
8,039
(3)
42,682
5,795

5,160
22
(66)
5,116
(1,404)

5,415
(612)
(687)
4,116
1,679

1,069
(1,509)
(964)
(37)
(1,001)

1,748
(10,634)
10,565
(500)
10,065

(1,260)
(2,261) $

(581)
9,484

Ratings Acquisition Corp
(operating as DBRS Group)
Interim Condensed Consolidated Statements of Share Capital and Other Shareholders’ Equity
(expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars, unless otherwise indicated)
For the period ended February 28, 2019

Share
capital
Balance, December 1, 2017
Net income
Dividends paid
Currency translation adjustment
Balance, February 28, 2018

$ 197,972
$ 197,972

Treasury
shares
$

(1,966)
(1,966)

$

Share
capital
Balance, December 1, 2018
Net loss
Dividends paid
Currency translation adjustment
Balance, February 28, 2019

$ 197,972
$ 197,972

Treasury
shares
$

$

(2,537)
(2,537)

Dividends
paid
$

(1,320)
(277)
(1,597)

$

Dividends
paid
$

$

(2,373)
(309)
(2,682)

Contributed
surplus
$

1,122
1,122

$

$

(31,001)
10,065
(20,936)

$

Contributed
surplus
$

$

1,122
1,122

Accumulated other
comprehensive income

Deficit
$

2,233
(581)
1,652

$

Accumulated other
comprehensive income

Deficit
$

$

(17,754)
(1,001)
(18,755)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these interim condensed consolidated financial statements.

$

$

4,681
(1,260)
3,421

Total shareholders'
equity
$

$

167,040
10,065
(277)
(581)
176,247

Total shareholders'
equity
$

181,111
(1,001)
(309)
(1,260)

$

178,541

Ratings Acquisition Corp
(operating as DBRS Group)
Interim Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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For the period ended February 28, 2019

Three months and year
to date period ended
February 28, 2019

Three months and year
to date period ended
February 28, 2018

Cash provided by (used In)
Operating activities
Net (loss) income from continuing operations

$

Items not affecting cash:
Amortization and depreciation
Amortization of deferred lease inducements
Amortization of deferred financing fees
Swap receivable
Unrealized foreign exchange on balances
Asset retirement obligation
Deferred income taxes
Net changes in non-cash working capital related to operations
Accounts receivable
Income taxes
Prepaid expenses
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Employee incentive plans
Deferred revenue
Net cash flows from operating activities for continuing operations
Net cash flows from operating activities for discontinued operations
Net cash flows from operating activities
Investing activities
Purchase of fixed assets
Purchase of intangible assets
Net cash flows from investing activities for continuing operations
Net cash flows from investing activities for discontinued operations
Net cash flows from investing activities

14

14

Financing activities
Redemption of preferred shares
Dividends paid
Loans paid to third parties
Net cash flows from financing activities for continuing operations
Net cash flows from financing activities for discontinued operations
Net cash flows from financing activities
Net change in cash
Effects of exchange rates changes on cash
Cash, beginning of period
Cash, end of period
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these interim condensed consolidated financial statements.

$

(964) $

10,565

8,430
269
565
2,907
(2,079)
13
(1,509)

8,039
56
472
(1,312)
12
(10,634)

7,668
(3,511)
(677)
(242)
(23,502)
3,937
(8,695)
(170)
(8,865)

1,493
(287)
(334)
(4,472)
(22,658)
1,990
(17,070)
(470)
(17,540)

(72)
(1,206)
(1,278)
(1,278)

(130)
(171)
(301)
(1)
(302)

(1,204)
(309)
(741)
(2,254)
(2,254)

(1,278)
(276)
(718)
(2,272)
(2,272)

(12,397)
1,059
56,842

(20,114)
1,125
40,100

45,504

$

21,111

Ratings Acquisition Corp
(operating as DBRS Group)
Notes to Interim Condsensed Consolidated Financial Statements
(expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars, unless otherwise indicated)
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1

Description of business and organization
a)

Description of business

Ratings Acquisition Corp (Ratings or the Company) is a private company incorporated on December 17, 2014 in the Cayman Islands. The
subsidiaries consist of DBRS, Inc. (DBRS US), DBRS Limited (DBRS Canada), DBRS Ratings Limited (DBRS UK), DBRS Ratings GmbH (DBRS
Germany) and DBRS Ratings Mexico, Institucion Calificadora de Valores, S.A. de C.V. (DBRS Mexico). DBRS Mexico was discontinued
subsequent to year-end. References herein to the Company refer to Ratings and its wholly owned subsidiaries.
Each wholly owned subsidiary is a recognized international full-service rating agency that provides timely and comprehensive rating opinions to the
world’s markets. Privately owned and independent, the subsidiaries offer in-depth credit ratings on issuers of commercial paper, bonds, long/shortterm debt, and preferred shares, as well as asset-backed securities in the corporate, financial institution, public finance, and structured finance
industries. The subsidiaries also offer industry analysis, rating reports and ratings indices for issuers and investors in North America, Europe, Asia,
and Latin America.
All references to $ or dollars are to the currency of Canada unless otherwise indicated. All references to US dollars or US$ are to the currency of the
United States unless otherwise indicated. All references to British pounds or £ are to the currency of the United Kingdom unless otherwise indicated.
2

Summary of significant accounting policies
Basis of presentation and principles of consolidation
The Company prepares its interim consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America (US GAAP). The Company’s interim condensed consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes have been prepared
in accordance with the requirements of the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (or the SEC) for interim reporting. Under those rules, certain
footnotes and other financial information that are normally required by U.S generally accepted accounting principles may be condensed or omitted.
The results for the interim period ended February 28, 2019 are not necessarily indicative of results to be expected for the full year. These interim
consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with our Annual consolidated financial statements for the year ended November 30,
2018. Certain prior period amounts have been reclassified to confirm to the 2019 presentation.
The consolidated financial statements include the results and balances of the Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries (DBRS Canada, DBRS
US, DBRS UK, DBRS Germany, DBRS Mexico, AAA UK Acquisition Co Limited. and AAA UK Holding Co Limited.). Intercompany balances and
transactions among consolidated entities have been eliminated on consolidation.
The Company’s reporting currency is the Canadian dollar.

Ratings Acquisition Corp
(operating as DBRS Group)
Notes to Interim Condsensed Consolidated Financial Statements
(expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars, unless otherwise indicated)
For the period ended February 28, 2019
2

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Newly adopted accounting policies
In November 2015, the Financial Accounting Standards Boards (FASB) issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2015-17, which simplifies the
presentation of deferred income taxes. The amendments in this update require that deferred income tax liabilities and assets be classified as
noncurrent in a classified statement of financial position. For public business entities, the amendments this update are effective for financial
statements issued for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2016, and interim periods within those annual periods. For all other entities, the
amendments in this update are effective for financial statements issued for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2017, and interim periods
within annual periods beginning after December 15, 2018. The Company assessed the standard and determined it to be applicable and it was
adopted during the 2018 fiscal year. The standard has been applied retroactively.
There have been no newly adopted accounting policies in the first quarter of 2019.
Newly released accounting standards not yet adopted
In May 2014, FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606) (ASU 2014-09), which supersedes the revenue
recognition requirements in Accounting Standard Codification 605, Revenue Recognition. ASU 2014-09 requires entities to recognize revenue in a
way that depicts the transfer of goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. ASU 2014-09 requires an additional disclosure about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of
revenue and cash flows arising from customer contracts, including significant judgments and changes in judgments and assets recognized from
costs incurred to obtain or fulfill a contract. ASU 2014-09 is effective retrospectively for fiscal years, and interim periods within those years,
beginning after December 15, 2018. The Company is currently assessing the impact of this standard on its financial statements.
In August 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-15, which provides guidance in GAAP about management’s responsibility to evaluate whether there is
substantial doubt about an entity’s ability to continue as a going concern and to provide related footnote disclosures. This standard is effective for all
entities for fiscal years and interim periods within those years, beginning after December 15, 2016. Early application is permitted. The Company has
assessed the standard and determined there is no substantial doubt about the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern.
In January 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-01, Financial Instruments - Overall: Recognition and Measurement of Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities as an amendment to ASC Subtopic 825-10. The amendments in this update address certain aspects of recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of financial instruments. This amendment requires all equity investments to be measured at fair value with changes in
the fair value recognized through net income (other than those accounted for under the equity method of accounting or those that result in
consolidation of the investee). The guidance is effective for the fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2017, including interim periods within
those annual periods. Early adoption of this amendment is not permitted. The Company is currently assessing the impact of this standard on its
financial statements.
In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842), to revise lease accounting guidance. The update requires most leases to be
recorded on the balance sheet as a lease liability, with a corresponding right-of-use asset,
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Newly released accounting standards not yet adopted (continued)
whereas many of these leases currently have an off-balance sheet classification. ASU 2016-02 must be applied on a modified retrospective basis
and is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018, and interim periods within those years, with early adoption permitted. The
Company is currently assessing the impact of this standard on its financial statements.
In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments - Credit Losses (Topic 326): Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial
Instruments. ASU 2016-13 requires the measurement of all expected credit losses for financial assets held at the reporting date based on historical
experience, current conditions and reasonable and supportable forecasts. Financial institutions and other organizations will now use forward-looking
information to better inform their credit loss estimates. ASU 2016-13 becomes effective for fiscal years and interim periods within those fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2019. The Company is currently assessing the impact of this standard on its financial statements.
In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-15, Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230): Classification of Certain Cash Receipts and Cash
Payments, which clarifies how companies present and classify certain cash receipts and cash payments in the statement of cash flows. The new
guidance is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2017. Early adoption is permitted. The Company is currently assessing the
impact of this standard on its financial statements.
In October 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-16, Income Taxes (Topic 740): Intra-Entity Transfers of Assets Other Than Inventory, which requires
entities to recognize the income tax effects of intercompany sales and transfers of assets, other than inventory, in the period in which the transfer
occurs. This is a change from current GAAP, which requires entities to defer the income tax effects of intercompany transfers of assets until the
asset has been sold to an outside party or otherwise recognized (i.e. depreciated, amortized and impaired). The income tax effects of intercompany
sales and transfers of inventory will continue to be deferred until the inventory is sold to an outside party. This ASU is effective for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2017, and interim periods within those years, with early adoption permitted. The Company is currently assessing the
impact of this standard on its financial statements.
In November 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-18, Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230): Restricted Cash, to reduce diversity in practice
related to the classification and presentation of changes in restricted cash on the statement of cash flows under Topic 230, Statement of Cash
Flows. The revised guidance requires that amounts generally described as restricted cash and restricted cash equivalents be included with cash and
cash equivalents when reconciling the beginning-of-period and end-of-period total amounts shown on the statement of cash flows. The guidance will
be applied on a retrospective basis beginning with the earliest period presented. The amendments in this ASU are effective for annual and interim
periods beginning after December 15, 2017. The Company is currently assessing the impact of this standard on its financial statements.
In August 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017-12, Derivatives and Hedging (Topic 815): Targeted Improvements to Accounting for Hedging
Activities. The new standard refines and expands hedge accounting for both financial and commodity risks. Its provisions create more transparency
around how economic results are presented, both on the face of the financial statements and in the notes. The new guidance is effective for fiscal
years, and interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning after December 15, 2018. Early adoption is permitted. The Company is currently
assessing the impact of this standard on its financial statements.
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Accounts receivable, net
Accounts receivable as at February 28, 2019 consist of the following balances:

Trade receivables
Other receivables

February 28, 2019
28,250 $
71
28,321 $

$
$

4

November 30, 2018
29,057
6,725
35,782

Intangible assets, net including goodwill
Intangible assets as at February 28, 2019 consist of the following:
Accumulated
amortization

Cost
Definite-lived intangible assets:
Customer relationships
Technology
Computer software obtained for internal use
Indefinite-lived intangible assets:
Trademarks
Goodwill

$

$

277,439
25,307
10,342
100,923
301,100
715,111

$

101,407
16,871
5,101

February 28, 2019
Net Book Value
$

176,032
8,436
5,241

$

123,379

100,923
301,100
591,732

$

November 30, 2018
Net Book Value
$

$

182,608
9,503
4,402

Weighted
average life
8.5
6
3-5

101,349
302,038
599,900

Amortization expense on definite-lived intangible assets of $7,452 for the period (2018 - $6,982) was recorded in amortization expense in the interim
condensed consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive income (loss). Amortization is recognized on a straight-line basis over the life
of the asset.
The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill in total are summarized as follows:
Balance - November 30, 2018
Foreign exchange
Balance - February 28, 2019

$

302,038
(938)
301,100

$

Amortization of the intangible assets is as follows:
Period ending February 28,
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
Thereafter

$

$

22,449
30,033
26,785
25,118
19,863
66,271
190,519
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Long-term debt
Long-term debt as at February 28, 2019 consists of the following:
February 28, 2019
Secured term loan facility
Debt issuance costs

$

Less: current portion
$

284,623
605
285,228
5,930
279,298

November 30, 2018
$

$

287,855
1,180
289,035
5,234
283,801

On March 4, 2015, DBRS Canada and DBRS US, as co-borrowers entered into a credit agreement with Credit Suisse AG (credit agreement), which
provides for a term loan with a principal amount of US$225 million under a secured term loan facility (term loan) and a revolver facility (revolver) of
up to US$40 million. The US$225 million term loan has been allocated US$125 million to DBRS Canada and US$100 million to DBRS US,
respectively.
The term loan matures on March 4, 2022, where the principal amounts amortize in quarterly instalments, with the balance due at the maturity date.
Interest accrues at a rate of LIBOR plus 5.25% per annum on the term loan. Early prepayments can be made on the term loan at no penalty,
provided the payments are made after the 12-month anniversary of the closing date of the credit agreement. Interest expense of $5.7 million (2018 $4.6 million) was recorded related to the term loan for the period.
The revolver matures on March 4, 2020 and accrues interest at a rate of LIBOR plus 4.50% or 5.00% annually, depending on certain leverage
ratios. Interest expense of $nil (2018 - $nil) was recorded related to the revolver for period as there was no withdrawal on the revolver.
Also included in the credit agreement is a swing-line facility of US$10 million, which was not utilized at February 28, 2019. The fair value of long-term
debt as at February 28, 2019 approximates its book value.
The long term debt was repaid upon acquisition of the Company by Morningstar in July 2019.
Covenants
The credit agreement contains a number of affirmative and negative covenants that, among other things, limit or restrict the ability to incur additional
indebtedness and liens, sell assets, fundamentally change business models, acquire other companies, or make certain investments. The credit
agreement requires the maintenance of one financial ratio.
Senior secured first lien net leverage ratio means, as of any date of determination, the ratio, on a pro forma basis, of: (i) consolidated senior secured
first lien indebtedness as of such date to; (ii) consolidated earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) for the most
recently completed test period.
If the sum of the aggregate principal amount of the revolver outstanding at the end of the period plus the aggregate principal amount of swing-line
loans then outstanding exceeds 30.0% of the aggregate principal amount of revolving commitment then the senior secured first lien net leverage
ratio is not permitted to exceed 7.25:1 until May 31, 2016
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Long-term debt (continued)
and 7.00:1 thereafter. As at February 28, 2019, the Company was in compliance with all covenants of the credit agreement.
Deferred financing costs
In connection with the credit agreement, the Company incurred US$10.6 million of deferred financing costs that was recorded as a direct reduction
against the term loan and is being amortized over the term of the loan into interest expense using the interest rate method. The amortization of
deferred financing costs included in interest expense was $0.6 million for the period ending February 28, 2019 (2018 - $0.8 million).
Maturities
The aggregate maturities of long-term debt as at February 28, 2019 are as follows:
2019
2019
2020
2021
2022

$

Deferred financing fees
$

4,447
5,930
5,930
268,316
284,623
605
285,228
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Income taxes
Income taxes recognized in the interim consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive income (loss) for the period comprises the
following:
Income before taxes of continuing operations
Income tax expense
Effective tax rate

$
$

Income before taxes of discontinued operations
Income tax expense
Effective tax rate

$
$

February 28, 2019
(1,404)
(440)
31%
(37)
0%

$
$

February 28, 2018
1,679
(8,886)
(529%)

$
$

(500)
0%

On December 22, 2017, the U.S. government enacted comprehensive tax legislation commonly referred to as the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (TCJA) or
Tax Reform. The TCJA included a broad range of complex provisions impacting the taxation of DBRS US. Specifically, DBRS US is impacted by the
change in the U.S. Federal corporate income tax rate from 34% to 21%, full expensing of fixed assets and the deductibility of certain costs.
DBRS US has completed the accounting for the relevant impacts surrounding the TCJA, specifically the change in tax rates from 34% to 21%
inclusive of the state impact. DBRS reduced its deferred tax liabilities by US$7.3M ($9.2M) to reflect the change in the US federal tax rate.
The table below provides information regarding the Company’s gross unrecognized tax benefits as of February 28, 2019 and November 30, 2018 ,
as well as the effect these gross unrecognized tax benefits would have on the Company’s income tax expense, if they were recognized.
Gross unrecognized tax benefits
Gross unrecognized tax benefits that would affect income tax
Decrease in income tax expense upon recognition of gross unrecognized tax benefits

$

February 28, 2019
5,058
5,058
5,058

$

November 30, 2018
5,050
5,050
5,050
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Capital stock and mezzanine equity
Authorized
Unlimited common shares
Unlimited Class A preferred shares
Issued

Balance - Beginning of period
Shares issued
Balance - End of period

February 28, 2019
Shares
Amount ($)
24,950,210
197,972
24,950,210 $
197,972

November 30, 2018
Shares
Amount ($)
24,950,210
197,972
24,950,210 $
197,972

Holders of common shares are entitled to one vote per share and to receive dividends and, on liquidation or dissolution, are entitled to receive all
assets available for distribution to shareholders. The holders have no pre-emptive or other subscription rights and there are no redemption or sinking
fund provisions with respect to such shares. Common shares are subordinate to the Class A preferred shares below with respect to dividend rights
and rights on liquidation, winding up and dissolution of the Company.
Distributions were paid to common share holders upon acquisition of the Company on July 2, 2019 as the acquisition was deemed to be a liquidation
event.
Class A preferred shares

Balance - Beginning of period
Shares redeemed
Balance - End of period

February 28, 2019
Shares
Amount ($)
80,819,518
80,820
(1,204,048)
(1,204)
79,615,470 $
79,616

November 30, 2018
Shares
Amount ($)
85,778,888
85,779
(4,959,370)
(4,959)
80,819,518 $
80,820

In connection with the transactions, 100,000,000 Class A cumulative compounding perpetual voting preferred shares were issued at a total purchase
price of $100 million or $1.00 per share (the Purchase Price). No issuance costs were incurred.
The Class A preferred shares will accrue an annual dividend of 6.0% until March 4, 2022, at which point the dividend will increase by 100 basis
points to a maximum of 8.0% as at March 4, 2024. The dividend is only payable upon approval by the Board of Directors, or when a liquidity event
occurs. The annual dividend will accrue on a daily basis on the sum of the value of the shares plus all accrued dividends, whether or not there are
funds legally available for the payment of dividends. All accrued dividends accumulate and compound on a quarterly basis.
All outstanding Class A preferred shares are mandatorily redeemable in the event of liquidity or the option of the Company in whole or in part subject
to certain restrictions. Liquidity events are events that result in significant changes to the ownership of the Company. The Company has an
agreement to redeem an agreed amount of Class A preferred shares based on a pre-set schedule, assuming the Company meets certain criteria at
each repayment date. The agreement continues indefinitely, and is subject to certain restrictions, including ensuring the redemption does not cause a
violation
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Capital stock and mezzanine equity (continued)
of any debt covenants. Assuming the Company is in compliance with all covenants, the Company would be required to pay approximately 6% of the
face value of the preferred shares per year.
Holders of the Class A preferred shares have voting rights equal to 10.1% of the issued voting share capital of the Company. Except as otherwise
provided, holders of the preferred shares and common shares vote together as a single class.
The Class A preferred shares are presented outside of permanent equity and are measured at their redemption amount. The liquidation value is
$100 million.
The outstanding Class A preferred shares were redeemable upon acquisition of the Company on July 2, 2019, as the acquisition was deemed to be
a liquidation event, and paid in July 2019.

8

Treasury shares
Treasury shares of zero shares were repurchased at a premium in 2019. Treasury shares of 32,125 shares were repurchased at a premium in 2018
and of those, nil were reissued for a net cash outlay of $571.

9

Share-based compensation
Ratings Acquisition Corp. 2015 Stock Option and Restricted Stock Unit Plan
On March 4, 2015, and restated as at March 31, 2015, the Board of Directors approved the Ratings Acquisition Corp. 2015 Stock Option and
Restricted Stock Unit Plan (2015 plan) granted to certain employees and directors of the Company.
As part of the 2015 plan, there were 728,276 options authorized and granted as of February 28, 2019, whereas each option can be exercised, once
vested, for one common share. The exercise price is equal to the fair value of a common share on the grant date and the term of the options shall
commence on the grant date and expire on the tenth anniversary thereof, unless the options shall have been earlier terminated in accordance with
the terms of the 2015 plan.
Options granted include a service component as well as a performance component. The service component vests in five equal instalments annually
on each of the first five anniversaries of the grant date. The performance component vests pursuant to the achievement of certain performance
conditions and is expensed based on a graded vesting schedule if performance conditions are met. The performance condition would mean any
event such as a change of control or an Initial Public Offering. The Company reassesses the probability of vesting at each reporting period for
awards with performance conditions and adjusts compensation cost based on its probability assessment.
During the operating period, nil additional options were granted and nil options were forfeited. Nil options were exercised during the period. As of
February 28, 2019, there were 728,276 options outstanding.
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Share-based compensation (continued)
The following table summarizes the options outstanding under the 2015 plan:

Outstanding - Beginning of period
Granted
Exercised
Forfeited
Balance - End of period

Number of options
708,943
708,943

Weighted average
exercise price ($)
8.82
8.82

The following table summarizes the RSUs outstanding under the 2015 plan:

Balance - Beginning of period
Granted
Exercised
Forfeited
Balance - End of period

Number of options
310,238
310,238

Weighted average
exercise price ($)
9.67
9.67

Ratings Acquisition Corp. 2015 Incentive Share Plan
On March 4, 2015, and restated as at March 31, 2015, the Board of Directors approved the 2015 Incentive Share Plan (2015 Incentive Plan) granted
to certain employees of the Company.
As part of the 2015 Incentive Plan, there were 1,887,981 Class A incentive shares authorized to be granted.
The Class A incentive shares granted include a service component as well as a performance component. The service component vests in five equal
instalments annually on each of the first five anniversaries of the grant date. The performance component vests pursuant to the achievement of
certain performance conditions and is expensed based on a graded vesting schedule if performance conditions are met. The performance condition
would mean any event such as a change of control or an Initial Public Offering. Both conditions must be met to allow the awards to exercise. The
Company reassesses the probability of vesting at each reporting period for awards with performance conditions and adjusts compensation cost
based on its probability assessment.
The Company granted nil Class A incentive shares during the period. During the period nil shares were forfeited and nil have vested or settled. As of
February 28, 2019 1,887,981 Class A incentive shares were outstanding.
The Company recorded stock-based compensation expense of $nil for the period of December 1, 2018 to February 28, 2019 ($nil for the period of
December 1, 2017 to February 28, 2018) for employees that left the Company. The compensation cost will only be recorded if a liquidity event is
deemed probable. A liquidation event was probable subsequent to the period end thus a stock compensation expense was recorded subsequent to
February 28, 2019.
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Financial instruments
Cross currency interest rate swap
The Company entered into a cross currency interest rate swap with Credit Suisse International to manage its exposure related to changes in interest
rates on $198 million of variable rate debt instruments most particularly the US$225 million variable rate LIBOR debt (note 5). The cross-currency
interest rate swap had a notional amount totaling US$158 million and matures on February 2020. The fair value of the interest rate swap as of
February 28, 2019 is an asset of $4,175 (2018 - $7,082) and is recorded in other assets in the interim condensed consolidated balance sheet. The
fair value of the interest rate agreement was calculated using a net present value of future discounted cash flows using the following significant
inputs: the term of the swap, the notional amount of the swap, discount rates interpolated based on relevant swap curves, the rate on the fixed leg of
the swap and a Level 2 input.
By effectively converting the interest rates from variable to fixed, the Company has eliminated the volatility.
Credit risk
The Company is exposed to credit risk resulting from the possibility counterparties may default on their financial obligations. Financial instruments
that potentially subject the Company to credit risk principally consist of cash, restricted cash, accounts receivable and derivative instruments. The
Company manages its credit risk exposure on cash by allocating its cash equivalents among various high-grade term deposits and money market
mutual funds. Credit risk on accounts receivable is managed through credit management procedures in place to ensure clients are creditworthy and
to mitigate the risk to any one party and to the aggregate balance. Management does not estimate the Company has any significant credit risk with
respect to any single client. Credit risk is the failure of the counterparty to perform under the terms of the derivative contract. When the fair value of a
derivative contract is positive, the counterparty owes the Company, which creates credit risk for the Company. When the fair value of a derivative
contract is negative, the Company owes the counterparty and, therefore, the Company is not exposed to the counterparty’s credit risk in those
circumstances. The Company minimizes counterparty credit risk in derivative instruments by entering into transactions with high quality
counterparties. The derivative instruments entered by the Company do not contain credit risk related contingent features.
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Financial instruments (continued)
The Company recognizes fair value measurements for each class of financial instruments as follows:
2019
Cash
Accounts receivable
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Swap receivable
Long term debt
Investments

2018
Cash
Accounts receivable
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Swap receivable
Long term debt
Investments

11

$

$

Level 1
45,504
28,321
7,416
81,241
Level 1
56,842
35,782
7,657
100,281

$

$

Level 2
4,175
285,228
289,403
Level 2
7,082
289,035
296,117

$

$

Level 3
705
705
Level 3
683
683

Commitments
The minimum lease payments under operating leases are as follows:
Period ending February 28
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
Thereafter

$

$

4,246
6,462
6,288
5,322
5,648
32,798
60,764

The Company, in support of the lease commitments, has issued a letter of credit in the amount of US500,000, with expiry dates ending January 31,
2034, as security deposits on leased office spaces.
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Supplemental cash flow information

Income taxes paid - DBRS Canada
Income taxes paid - DBRS US
Interest on debt - DBRS Canada
Interest on debt - DBRS US

Period ended
February 28, 2019
1,784
651
3,167
2,523
8,125

$

$
13

Period ended
February 28, 2018
9,645
1,101
11,489
9,412
31,647

$

$

Contingencies
DBRS Group is not involved in any legal proceedings that are expected to have a material effect on its business, financial position or results of
operations or liquidity, nor is DBRS Group aware of any proceedings that are pending or threatened that may have a material effect on the business,
financial position and results of operations or liquidity.

14

Discontinued operations
During fiscal 2018, the Company made the decision to discontinue operations for the entity DBRS Ratings Mexico, Institucion Calificadora de
Valores, S.A. de C.V. by disposing the entity of through a dissolution. The decision was made after determining that it would take a significant
amount of time and investment in order to build a solid book of business, given that the Company was only able to obtain and rate local ratings and
the fees associated with local ratings are significantly lower than global ratings that represent DBRS’ core operations.
Major classes of line items constituting net loss from discontinued operations:
Period ended
February 28, 2019
Revenue
Fees
Expenses
Salaries and benefits
Employee incentive plans
General and administrative
Rent and operating
Amortization and depreciation
Foreign exchange loss (gain)
Transaction and other
Loss from discontinued operations before income taxes
Income tax expense
Net loss from discontinued operations

$

-

Period ended
February 28, 2018
$

3
-

$

82
(48)
37
(37)
(37) $

36
151
6
176
19
1
153
30
536
(500)
(500)
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Discontinued operations (continued)
The following provides additional information with respect to amounts included in the February 28, 2019 and November 30, 2018 balance sheets as
assets and liabilities of discontinued operations:
Carrying amounts of major classes of assets included as part of discontinued operations
Accounts receivable, net
Prepaid expenses
Current portion of assets of discontinued operations
Property and equipment, net
Intangible assets
Total assets of discontinued operations

$

$

As at February 28, 2019
31
3
34
34

Carrying amounts of major classes of liabilities included as part of discontinued operations
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
$
Employee incentive plans
Current portion deferred revenue
Current portion of liabilities of discontinued operations
Total liabilities of discontinued operations
$

2

$

$

As at November 30, 2018
32
3
35
35

$

-

87
-

2
2

$

87
87
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Discontinued operations (continued)
The cash flows from discontinued operations for periods ended February 28, 2019 and February 28, 2018 are as follows:
Period ended
February 28, 2019

15

Period ended
February 28, 2018

Cash provided by (used in)
Operating activities
Net loss for discontinued operations
$
Items not affecting cash:
Amortization and depreciation
Unrealized foreign exchange on balances
Net changes in non-cash working capital related to discontinued operations
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses and other
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Employee incentive plans
Deferred revenue
Net cash flows from operating activities for discontinued operations
Investing activities
Purchase of fixed assets
Purchase of intangible assets
Net cash flows from investing activities for discontinued operations
Financing activities
Loans paid to related parties
Net cash flows from financing activities for discontinued operations

(60)

1
153

(73)
(170)

46
16
(34)
(130)
(22)
(470)

Net change in cash for discontinued operations

(170) $

$

(37) $

(500)

-

-

(1)

-

-

(1)

(471)

Subsequent events
On July 2, 2019, the Company was acquired by Morningstar for a purchase price of US$669 million subject to certain adjustments. Management has
considered all subsequent events through to September 12, 2019, the date the financial statements are available for issuance.

Exhibit 99.3
MORNINGSTAR, INC.
UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Background of the Acquisition
The following unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated financial statements were prepared in connection with the acquisition of Ratings Acquisition Corp (“DBRS
Group”) by Morningstar, Inc. (“Morningstar” or the “Company”) on July 2, 2019 (the “Acquisition”) for an aggregate cash purchase price of US$669 million (subject to
certain adjustments), as previously reported in the Current Report on Form 8-K filed by Morningstar with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission (the
“SEC”) on July 3, 2019. The consideration was funded through a combination of cash on hand and debt financing. A detailed description of the terms of the Acquisition
and a copy of the merger agreement governing the Acquisition are included in the Current Report on Form 8-K filed by Morningstar on June 3, 2019.
The following unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated financial statements are based on the audited historical financial information of Morningstar and DBRS
Group as adjusted to give effect to the Acquisition as if it occurred on: (i) June 30, 2019 for the unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated balance sheet, and (ii)
January 1, 2018 for the unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated statements of income.
The unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated financial statements were derived from the following:
·
·
·
·
·

the unaudited consolidated financial statements of Morningstar for the interim period ended June 30, 2019 included in Morningstar’s Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q filed with the SEC on July 26, 2019;
the audited consolidated financial statements of Morningstar for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2018 included in Morningstar’s Annual Report on Form
10-K filed with the SEC on March 1, 2019;
the audited consolidated financial statements of DBRS Group for the fiscal years ended November 30, 2018 and 2017 included in this Form 8-K/A;
the unaudited consolidated financial statements of DBRS Group for the interim periods ended February 28, 2019 and 2018 included in this Form 8-K/A; and
internally constructed financial information of DBRS Group for the period from January 1, 2019 to June 30, 2019.
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Morningstar, Inc.
Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated Statement of Income
For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2019
(in thousands of USD, except per share amounts)

Revenue

DBRS Group
(as adjusted)
Note 3

Morningstar, Inc.

$

532,800

$

Pro Forma
Adjustments

80,274

$

Pro Forma
Consolidated

Note

(79)

5(a)

$

612,995

Operating expense:
Cost of revenue
Sales and marketing
General and administrative
Depreciation and amortization
Total operating expense

212,600
85,700
84,800
49,400
432,500

40,454
4,859
17,762
12,467
75,542

(1,736)
5,737
4,001

Operating income

100,300

4,732

(4,080)

Non-operating income (expense), net:
Interest expense
Gain on sale of investments, reclassified from other comprehensive income
Other income (expense), net
Non-operating expense, net

400
(1,400)
(1,000)

(6,027)
(4,339)
(10,366)

(4,661)
8,105
3,444

Income (loss) before income taxes and equity in net loss of unconsolidated entities

99,300

(5,634)

(636)

93,030

(800)

-

-

(800)

23,200

(1,696)

(769)

Equity in net loss of unconsolidated entities
Income tax expense (benefit)
Consolidated net income (loss)

$

75,300

Net income per share:
Basic
Diluted

$
$

1.77
1.75

Weighted average shares outstanding (in millions):
Basic
Diluted

$

42.70
43.10

See the accompanying notes to the unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated financial statements.
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(3,938)

$

133

253,054
90,559
100,826
67,604
512,043

5(d)
5(b)

100,952
5(c)

(10,688)
400
2,366
(7,922)

5(d)

5(e)

20,735
$

71,495

$
$

1.67
1.66
42.70
43.10

Morningstar, Inc.
Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated Statement of Income
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018
Morningstar,
Inc.
1,019,900

DBRS Group
(as adjusted)
Note 3
$
169,538

Operating expense:
Cost of revenue
Sales and marketing
General and administrative
Depreciation and amortization
Total operating expense

411,100
148,500
147,800
96,700
804,100

78,389
8,460
33,774
25,602
146,225

10,524
10,524

Operating income

215,800

23,313

(15,476)

Non-operating income (expense), net:
Interest expense, net
Gain on sale of investments, reclassified from other comprehensive income
Gain on sale of a product line
Gain on sale of equity investments
Other income (expense), net
Non-operating income (expense), net

(1,800)
1,000
10,500
5,600
1,800
17,100

(18,664)
714
(1,899)
(19,849)

(2,888)
(2,888)

Income before income taxes and equity in net loss of unconsolidated entities

232,900

3,464

(18,364)

218,000

Equity in net loss of unconsolidated entities

(2,100)

-

-

(2,100)

Income tax expense (benefit)

47,800

(7,936)

(4,775)

-

(1,132)

-

(in thousands of USD, except per share amounts)
Revenue

$

Net loss from discontinued operations
Consolidated net income

$

183,000

Net income per share:
Basic
Diluted

$
$

4.30
4.25

Weighted average shares outstanding (in millions)
Basic
Diluted

$

42.6
43.0

See the accompanying notes to the unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated financial statements.
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10,268

Pro Forma
Adjustments
$

$

Pro Forma
Consolidated

Note

(4,952)

(13,589)

5(a)

$

1,184,486
489,489
156,960
181,574
132,826
960,849

5(b)

223,637
5(c)

(23,352)
1,714
10,500
5,600
(99)
(5,637)

5(e)

35,089
(1,132)
$

179,679

$
$

4.22
4.18
42.6
43.0

Morningstar, Inc.
Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet
As of June 30, 2019
(in thousands of USD)
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Accounts receivable
Income tax receivable
Deferred commissions
Other current assets
Total current assets
Goodwill
Property, equipment, and capitalized software, net
Operating lease assets
Intangible assets, net
Investments in unconsolidated entities
Deferred commissions, non-current
Other assets
Total assets
Liabilities and equity
Current liabilities:
Deferred revenue
Accrued compensation
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Operating lease liabilities
Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities
Operating lease liabilities, non-current
Accrued compensation
Deferred tax liability, net
Long-term debt
Deferred revenue, non-current
Other long-term liabilities
Total liabilities

$

$

$

Equity:
Total equity
Total liabilities and equity

DBRS Group
(as adjusted)
Note 3

Morningstar, Inc.

383,800
30,100
169,200
1,100
13,500
22,200
619,900
556,500
140,400
111,800
64,700
61,400
12,500
5,100
1,572,300

$

232,900
72,000
45,300
29,600
1,600
381,400
109,400
12,500
21,100
15,000
14,400
15,100
568,900

$

$

1,003,400
$

1,572,300

8,097
30,767
3,952
42,816
229,080
10,945
214,484
512
150
497,987

$

32,993
10,188
5,972
1,734
50,887
42,547
185,685
18,040
8,414
305,573

$

$

192,414
$

See the accompanying notes to the unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated financial statements.
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Pro Forma
Adjustments

497,987

(89,664)
(782)
515
(89,931)
242,790
32,590
73,716
833
259,998

(5,313)
(11)
3,507
(1,817)
30,220
23,331
408,066
(2,393)
(4,995)
452,412
(192,414)

$

259,998

Pro Forma
Consolidated

Note

5(f)

$

5(g)
5(g)
5(h)
5(i)
5(b)
5(k)
$

5(a)

$

5(g)
5(i)

5(i)
5(j)
5(k)
5(a)
5(i)

5(l)

302,233
30,100
199,185
1,100
13,500
26,667
572,785
1,028,370
151,345
144,390
352,900
61,912
12,500
6,083
2,330,285

260,580
82,188
51,261
33,107
3,334
430,470
139,620
12,500
86,978
608,751
30,047
18,519
1,326,885
1,003,400

$

2,330,285

Morningstar, Inc.
Notes to Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
Note 1. Basis of Presentation
The unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared using Morningstar’s and DBRS Group’s historical consolidated financial
information and present the pro forma effect of the Acquisition and certain adjustments described herein in accordance with Article 11 of Regulation S-X. The historical
financial information of Morningstar and DBRS Group has been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (“U.S.
GAAP”). The historical financial information of Morningstar and the information presented herein are in U.S. dollars (“USD”) unless otherwise stated. The historical
financial information of DBRS Group was translated from Canadian dollars (“CAD”) into USD for purposes of presenting pro forma financial information. Revenue and
expenses were translated using an average exchange rate for the period, and the assets and liabilities were translated using the exchange rate as of the balance sheet date.
Balances referenced in the notes are in USD unless stated otherwise.
The unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated financial statements were prepared using the acquisition method of accounting in accordance with Financial
Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standard Topic 805, Business Combinations (“ASC 805”) with Morningstar considered the acquirer of DBRS
Group for accounting purposes. The pro forma condensed consolidated financial statements are provided for illustrative purposes only and are not intended to represent,
and are not necessarily indicative of, what the operating results or financial position of the Company would have been had the Acquisition been completed on the dates
indicated, nor are they necessarily indicative of the Company’s future operating results or financial position. The pro forma financial information does not reflect the
impacts of any potential operational efficiencies, asset dispositions, cost savings or economies of scale that the Company may achieve with respect to the Acquisition.
Additionally, the unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated statements of income do not include non-recurring charges or credits that result directly from the
Acquisition. Differences between estimates used in the purchase price allocation included within these unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated financial statements
and the final purchase price allocation amounts will occur, and these differences could have a material impact on the accompanying unaudited pro forma condensed
consolidated financial statements or future financial statements.
The historical consolidated financial information has been adjusted in the unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated financial statements to give effect to pro forma
events that are (1) directly attributable to the Acquisition, (2) factually supportable, and (3) expected to have a continuing impact on the consolidated results of the
combined company.
Note 2. Description of Financing
The Company completed the Acquisition of DBRS Group for $683.0 million in cash. The Company financed the Acquisition through a combination of cash on hand and
borrowings under a new senior credit agreement with Bank of America, N.A. The new senior credit agreement provides a five year multi-currency credit facility with a
borrowing capacity of up to $750.0 million, including a $300.0 million revolving line of credit (the “Revolving Credit Facility”) and a term facility of $450.0 million
(the “Term Facility”) (collectively, the “new Credit Agreement”). To complete the Acquisition, the Company drew down $160.0 million of the Revolving Credit
Facility and $450.0 million of the Term Facility.
Note 3. Adjustments to DBRS Group Financial Statements
Certain reclassifications have been made to the historical financial statements of DBRS Group to conform to the financial statement presentation and accounting policies
adopted by Morningstar, which are outlined below. The reclassification amounts reflected in this note are in CAD.
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DBRS Group
Unaudited Consolidated Statement of Loss
For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2019
(in thousands)

Revenue

Presentation
Adjustments
CAD

DBRS Group
CAD
$

Operating expense:
Cost of revenue
Sales and marketing
General and administrative
Depreciation and amortization
Salaries and benefits
Employee incentive plans
Rent and operating
Provision for allowance for doubtful accounts
Total operating expense

107,032

$

DBRS Group
(as adjusted)
CAD
-

$

DBRS Group
(as adjusted)
USD
Note 3(a)

Note

107,032

$

17,610
16,603
51,312
10,804
4,297
96
100,722

53,939
6,478
6,072
20
(51,312)
(10,804)
(4,297)
(96)
-

53,939
6,478
23,682
16,623
100,722

6,310

-

6,310

(8,036)
4,225
(10,010)
(13,821)

(5,785)
(4,225)
10,010
-

(8,036)
(5,785)
(13,821)

Loss from continuing operations before income taxes

(7,511)

-

(7,511)

(5,634)

Income tax benefit

(2,261)

-

(2,261)

(1,696)

Operating income
Other income (expense):
Interest expense
Other income (expense), net
Foreign exchange gain (loss)
Transaction and other
Non-operating loss, net

Consolidated net loss

$

(5,250)

6

$

-

$

(5,250)

3(b)
3(c)
3(d)
3(e)
3(f)
3(g)
3(h)
3(i)

80,274
40,454
4,859
17,762
12,467
75,542
4,732
(6,027)
(4,339)
(10,366)

3(j)
3(j)
3(j)

$

(3,938)

DBRS Group
Unaudited Consolidated Statement of Income
For the Year Ended November 30, 2018
(in thousands)

Revenue

$

218,678

Operating expense:
Cost of revenue
Sales and marketing
General and administrative
Depreciation and amortization
Salaries and benefits
Employee incentive plans
Rent and operating
Provision for allowance for doubtful accounts
Total operating expense
Operating income
Other income (expense):
Interest expense
Gain on sale of investment
Other income (expense), net
Foreign exchange gain (loss)
Transaction and other
Non-operating loss, net
Income from continuing operations before income taxes
Income tax benefit
Net loss from discontinued operations
Consolidated net income

Presentation
Adjustments
CAD

DBRS Group
CAD

$

-

$

Note

218,678

DBRS Group
(as adjusted)
USD
Note 3(a)
$

169,538

33,808
32,916
88,185
25,071
8,620
6
188,606

101,109
10,912
9,755
106
(88,185)
(25,071)
(8,620)
(6)
-

101,109
10,912
43,563
33,022
188,606

3(b)
3(c)
3(d)
3(e)
3(f)
3(g)
3(h)
3(i)

78,389
8,460
33,774
25,602
146,225

30,072

-

30,072

-

23,313

(24,073)
921
(2,551)
102
(25,601)

(2,449)
2,551
(102)
-

(24,073)
921
(2,449)
(25,601)

4,471

-

4,471

3,464

(10,236)

-

(10,236)

(7,936)

(1,460)

-

(1,460)

(1,132)

13,247
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$

DBRS Group
(as adjusted)
CAD

$

-

$

13,247

(18,664)
714
(1,899)
(19,849)

3(j)
3(j)
3(j)

$

10,268

DBRS Group
Unaudited Consolidated Balance Sheet
As of June 30, 2019
(in thousands)

Assets
Current assets:
Cash
Accounts receivable, net
Other current assets
Current deferred tax asset
Prepaid expenses
Total current assets
Goodwill
Property and equipment, net
Intangible assets
Other assets
Investments
Long-term deferred tax asset
Total assets
Liabilities and equity
Current liabilities:
Accrued compensation
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Employee incentive plans
Current portion deferred revenue
Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities
Deferred tax liability, net
Long-term debt
Deferred revenue
Other
Other long-term liabilities
Unrecognized tax benefits
Asset retirement obligation
Total liabilities
Equity:
Total equity
Total liabilities and equity

Presentation
Adjustments
CAD

DBRS Group
CAD

$

$

$

10,635
40,407
177
5,191
56,410
300,867
14,374
281,697
197
673
8,882
663,100

$

7,844
13,379
43,332
2,277
66,832
64,941
243,873
23,693
6,560
4,171
319
410,389

$

252,711
663,100

$

8

$

$

DBRS Group (as
adjusted)
CAD

5,191
(177)
(5,191)
(177)
(8,882)
(9,059)

$

13,379
(13,379)
(64,941)
55,882
(6,560)
11,050
(4,171)
(319)
(9,059)

$

(9,059)

$

$

10,635
40,407
5,191
56,233
300,867
14,374
281,697
197
673
654,041

13,379
7,844
43,332
2,277
66,832
55,882
243,873
23,693
11,050
401,330

252,711
654,041

Note

DBRS Group
(as adjusted)
USD
Note 3(k)

$
3(l)
3(m)
3(l)

3(m)
$

3(n)

$

3(n)

3(m)
3(m)
3(o)
3(o)
3(o)
3(o)

$

8,097
30,767
3,952
42,816
229,080
10,945
214,484
150
512
497,987

10,188
5,972
32,993
1,734
50,887
42,547
185,685
18,040
8,414
305,573

192,414
497,987

Reclassification to DBRS Consolidated Statements of Income (Loss)
(a) The historical financial information of DBRS Group is translated into USD using (i) an average exchange rate of 0.7500 for the six months ended June 30,
2019, and (ii) an average exchange rate of 0.7753 for the year ended November 30, 2018.
(b) Cost of revenue – In DBRS Group’s historical financial statements for the six months ended June 30, 2019, $7.4 million of cost of revenue was included within
general and administrative expense, $35.9 million within salaries and benefits, $7.4 million within employee incentive plans, $3.1 million within rent and
operating expense and $0.1 million within provision for allowance for doubtful accounts. Similarly, for the year ended November 30, 2018, cost of revenue of
$14.6 million was included within in general and administrative expense, $63.8 million within salaries and benefits, $16.6 million within employee incentive
plans and $6.1 million within rent and operating expense.
(c) Sales and marketing – For the six months ended June 30, 2019, sales and marketing expense of $0.6 million was included within general and administrative
expense, $4.5 million within salaries and benefits, $1.1 million within employee incentive plans, and $0.3 million within rent and operating expense. For the
year ended November 30, 2018, sales and marketing expense of $1.1 million was included within general and administrative expense, $6.4 million within
salaries and benefits, $2.8 million within employee incentive plans and $0.6 million within rent and operating expense.
(d) General and administrative – As stated in 3(b) and 3(c), a total of $8.0 million for the six months ended June 30, 2019 and $15.8 million for the year ended
November 30, 2018 were reclassified to “Cost of revenue”, “Sales and marketing” and “Depreciation and amortization”. There was $10.9 million reflected in
salaries and benefits, $2.3 million within employee incentive plans and $0.9 million within rent and operating expense for the six months ended June 30, 2019.
In addition, historically, there was $18.0 million of general and administrative expense reflected within salaries and benefits, $5.7 million within employee
incentive plans and $1.9 million within rent and operating expense during the year ended November 30, 2018.
(e) Depreciation and amortization – Depreciation and amortization expense of $20,000 for the six months ended June 30, 2019 was historically reflected in
general and administrative expense. For the year ended November 30, 2018, $106,000 of depreciation and amortization expense was within general and
administrative expense. These amounts were reclassified and presented within the caption “Depreciation and amortization.”
(f) Salaries and benefits – As stated in 3(b), 3(c) and 3(d), a total amount of $51.3 million for the six months ended June 30, 2019 and $88.2 million for the year
ended November 30, 2018 were reclassified to “Cost of revenue,” “Sales and marketing,” and “General and administrative.”
(g) Employee incentive plans – As stated in 3(b), 3(c) and 3(d), a total amount of $10.8 million for the six months ended June 30, 2019 and $25.1 million for the
year ended November 30, 2018 were reclassified to “Cost of revenue,” “Sales and marketing,” and “General and administrative.”
(h) Rent and operating – As stated in 3(b), 3(c) and 3(d), a total amount of $4.3 million for the six months ended June 30, 2019 and $8.6 million for the year ended
November 30, 2018 were reclassified to “Cost of revenue,” “Sales and marketing,” and “General and administrative.”
(i) Provision for allowance for doubtful accounts – Provision for allowance for doubtful accounts in an amount of $96,000 for the six months ended June 30, 2019
was reclassified to “Cost of revenue”. During the year ended November 30, 2018, $6,000 of provision for allowance for doubtful accounts was reclassified and
presented within the caption “Cost of revenue.”
(j) Other income (expense), net – Foreign exchange loss of $4.2 million and transaction and other costs of $10.0 million were reclassified to “Other income
(expense), net” for the six months ended June 30, 2019. During the year ended November 30, 2018, $2.5 million in foreign exchange gain and $0.1 million in
transaction and other costs were reclassified to “Other income (expense), net.”
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Reclassification to DBRS Balance Sheet
(k) The historical financial information of DBRS Group is translated into USD using an exchange rate of 0.7614 as of June 30, 2019 for assets and liabilities.
(l) Other current assets – $5.2 million in prepaid expenses were reclassified to “Other current assets.”
(m) Deferred tax assets and liabilities – To conform to the Company’s financial statement presentation of Accounting Standard Update No. 2015-17, Income Taxes
– Balance Sheet Classification of Deferred Taxes, current deferred tax asset of $0.2 million, long-term deferred tax assets of $8.9 million and deferred tax
liabilities of $64.9 million were reclassified to “Deferred tax liability, net.”
(n) Accrued compensation – Employee incentive plan liabilities of $13.4 million was reclassified to “Accrued compensation.”
(o) Other long-term liabilities – $6.6 million in other liabilities, $0.3 million in asset retirement obligations and $4.2 million in unrecognized tax benefits were
reclassified to “Other long-term liabilities.”
Note 4. Purchase Consideration and Preliminary Purchase Price Allocation
An estimate of the acquisition consideration paid on the Acquisition date of July 2, 2019 is presented below:

Fair value of total consideration transferred

$

(in thousands)
683,018

The total consideration transferred includes the amount paid to DBRS Group’s equity holders and to settle DBRS Group’s existing debt and employee equity awards.
The fair value of the purchase consideration was allocated to the preliminary fair value of the net tangible assets acquired and to the separately identifiable intangible
assets. The excess of the aggregate fair value of the net tangible assets and identified intangible assets has been treated as goodwill in accordance with ASC 805.
(in thousands)
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Other current assets
Investments in unconsolidated entities
Property, equipment, and capitalized software, net
Other assets
Intangible assets, net
Operating lease assets
Total assets

$

$

Liabilities
Accrued compensation
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Other current liabilities
Deferred revenue
Deferred tax liability, net
Other long-term liabilities
Operating lease liabilities
Total liabilities

$

8,533
29,985
4,467
512
10,945
150
288,200
32,590
375,382

$

10,188
5,961
1,734
43,327
65,878
3,419
33,727
164,234

Net assets acquired

$

211,148

Goodwill

$

471,870

Total consideration transferred

$

683,018
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The final calculation and allocation of the purchase consideration are dependent on the finalization of fair value estimates and assumptions at the acquisition date that
are still in progress. These preliminary estimates will likely differ from final amounts the Company will calculate after completing a detailed valuation analysis, and any
differences could have a material effect on the unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated financial statements or the Company’s financial statements for future
periods. As a result, the preliminary purchase price allocation is subject to change and will be finalized no later than one year from the acquisition date.
Note 5. Pro Forma Adjustments
Pro forma adjustments reflect those matters that are a direct result of the Acquisition of DBRS Group, which are factually supportable and, for pro forma adjustments to
the unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated statement of income, are expected to have a continuing impact. The pro forma adjustments are based on preliminary
estimates that will likely differ from final amounts the Company will calculate after completing a detailed valuation analysis, and any differences could have a material
effect on the unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated financial statements or the Company’s financial statements for future periods.
(a) Represents the estimated adjustment to decrease the assumed deferred revenue obligations to a fair value of approximately $43.3 million, a $5.3 million
decrease from the carrying value of the current portion and a $2.4 million decrease from the carrying value of the non-current portion. The fair value was
determined based on the estimated costs to fulfill the remaining performance obligations plus a normal profit margin. After the Acquisition, this adjustment
will have a continuing impact and will reduce revenue related to the assumed performance obligations. The pro forma adjustments to reduce revenue by $0.1
million for the six months ended June 30, 2019 and $5.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2018 reflect the difference between prepayments and the fair
value of the deferred revenue as performance obligations are satisfied, assuming the Acquisition was consummated on January 1, 2018.
(b) Reflects the adjustment of historical intangible assets acquired by the Company to their estimated fair values. As part of the preliminary valuation analysis, the
Company identified intangible assets, including technology, trade names, and customer relationships. All other intangible assets, such as computer software
and technology-based assets, were transferred at net book value. The following table reflects the adjustment to increase the net book value of the identified net
assets to their fair values:
(in thousands)
Assets
Customer relationships
Developed technology
Trademarks
Total fair value of identified intangibles
Less: historical book value of identified intangibles
Unaudited pro forma adjustment

$

$
$

223,200
29,400
35,600
288,200
(214,484)
73,716

The amortization expense is adjusted to reflect the fair value increases for the intangible assets identified.
It also reflects the adjustment of the depreciation expense of DBRS Group’s property and equipment to reflect their estimated remaining useful lives. The
assets’ net book value reflects the fair value.
The following table summarizes: i) the estimated fair values of DBRS Group’s identifiable intangible assets and the incremental amortization expense using a
straight-line method over their weighted average estimated useful lives; and ii) the revised weighted average useful lives of property and equipment using a
straight-line method of amortization:
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(in thousands, except for
weighted average useful life)

Estimated
fair value

Weighted
average
useful life
(years)

Depreciation /
amortization
expense for the
Six Months
ended June 30,
2019

Depreciation /
amortization
expense for
the Year
Ended
December 31,
2018

$

$

Intangible assets
Customer relationships

223,200

10

Developed technology

$

29,400

6

2,472

4,943

Trademarks

35,600

6

2,866

5,733

Total

$

288,200

$

Less: DBRS Group’s historical amortization expense

11,564

16,902

$

(11,046)

Unaudited pro forma adjustments

23,128

33,804
(23,052)

$

5,856

$

10,752

$

188

$

375

$

208

$

415

Property and equipment
Furniture and Fixtures

$

2,074

6

139

3

$

2,213

Telephone Equipment
Total

20

Less: DBRS Group’s historical depreciation expense

40

(327)

(643)

Unaudited pro forma adjustments

$

(119)

$

(228)

Total unaudited pro forma adjustment

$

5,737

$

10,524

These preliminary estimates of fair value and estimated useful lives will likely differ from final amounts the Company will calculate after completing a detailed
valuation analysis, and any differences could have a material effect on the unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated financial statements or the Company’s
financial statements for future periods.
(c) The following table represents the net increase to interest expense of $4.7 million and $2.9 million for the six months ended June 30, 2019 and the year ended
December 31, 2018, respectively, which resulted from (i) interest on borrowings under the Term Facility and Revolving Credit Facility, (ii) the amortization of
costs incurred in connection with the origination of the Term Facility and Revolving Credit Facility, and (iii) the elimination of historical interest expense of
DBRS Group related to its long-term debt combined with the amortization of the related debt issuance costs:
Six Months Ended
Year Ended
June 30, 2019
December 31, 2018
$
10,472 $
21,123
208
414
(6,019)
(18,649)
4,661 $
2,888
$

(in thousands)
Estimated interest expense on borrowings under the new Credit Agreement
Amortization of origination fees on the new Credit Agreement
Historical interest expense and amortization of debt issuance costs
Unaudited pro forma adjustment
Further details on the Term Facility and Revolving Credit Facility are discussed in Note 2.
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(d) Represents the elimination of nonrecurring transaction costs incurred during the six-month period ended June 30, 2019 of $9.8 million that are directly related
to the Acquisition for both companies. These transaction costs have been excluded from the unaudited pro forma statements as they will not have a continuing
impact on the combined company’s operations.
(e) Reflects the income tax effect of pro forma adjustments based on the estimated blended statutory tax rate of 26%.
Six Months Ended
June 30, 2019

(in thousands)
Benefit due to deferred revenue adjustments
Benefit due to depreciation and amortization adjustments
Benefit due to interest expense adjustment
Expense due to transaction expense adjustment
Unaudited pro forma adjustment

$

$

Year Ended
December 31, 2018
(21) $
(1,288)
(1,492)
(2,736)
(1,212)
(751)
1,956
(769) $
(4,775)

(f) Reflects the preliminary net adjustment to cash in connection with the Acquisition.

Cash consideration transferred
Extinguishment of Morningstar’s previous revolving credit facility
Proceeds of new borrowings, net of issuance fees
Working capital adjustment

$

Unaudited pro forma adjustment

$

(in thousands)
(683,018)
(15,000)
607,919
435
(89,664)

(g) Reflects the working capital adjustments based on the purchase price allocation as of the Acquisition date as shown in Note 4.
(h) Reflects the elimination of historical goodwill of $229.1 million and recognition of new goodwill of $471.9 million resulting from the Acquisition.

Preliminary purchase price
Less: fair value of net assets acquired
Total estimated goodwill resulting from transaction
Less: DBRS Group historical goodwill

$

Unaudited pro forma adjustment

$

(in thousands)
683,018
(211,148)
471,870
(229,080)
242,790

(i) Reflects the conformance to the Company’s accounting for leases under FASB Accounting Standard Topic 842, Leases (“ASC 842”). Within the unaudited pro
forma balance sheet, it includes the addition of the “Operating lease assets” of $32.6 million and “Operating lease liabilities” of $33.7 million, for which $3.5
million relates to the current portion and $30.2 million to the non-current portion. This also results in an adjustment of $5.0 million associated with lease
inducements within “Other long-term liabilities.”
(j) The $23.3 million increase in deferred tax liabilities reflects the preliminary estimate of deferred tax liabilities recognized on the estimated fair value
adjustments to net assets acquired. This amount was calculated using an estimated blended statutory tax rate of 26%. This estimate of deferred income tax
balances is preliminary and subject to change based on management’s final determination of the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed by
jurisdiction.
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(k) Reflects the borrowings under the Term Facility and Revolving Credit Facility to finance the Acquisition of DBRS Group, minus the effects of extinguishing
the existing debt of Morningstar upon completion of the Acquisition. This also results in an adjustment of $0.8 million of debt issuance costs associated with
the Revolving Credit Facility within “Other assets.”
(in thousands)
Issuance of Term Facility1, net of debt issuance costs of $1.3 million

$

Issuance of Revolving Credit Facility
Extinguishment of DBRS Group’s existing debt, including write-off of unamortized debt issuance costs of $0.4 million
Extinguishment of Morningstar’s previous revolving credit facility
Unaudited pro forma adjustment

$

1 Includes current portion of Term Facility of $11,250.

(l) These adjustments represent the elimination of DBRS Group’s historical shareholders’ equity.
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448,751
160,000
(185,685)
(15,000)
408,066

